U.S. DEPARTMENT OF LABOR Employment and Training Administration

NOTICE OF AVAILABILITY OF FUNDS AND FUNDING OPPORTUNITY

ANNOUNCEMENT FOR: Pathway Home 6

ANNOUNCEMENT TYPE: Initial

FUNDING OPPORTUNITY NUMBER: FOA-ETA-25-29

CATALOG OF FEDERAL DOMESTIC ASSISTANCE (CFDA) NUMBER: 17.270

KEY DATES: The closing date for receipt of applications under this Announcement is 03/14/2025. We must receive applications no later than **11:59 pm Eastern Time.**

Submit all applications in response to this solicitation through https://www.grants.gov. For complete application and submission information, including online application instructions, please refer to Section IV.

Table of Contents

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY	2
I. FUNDING OPPORTUNITY DESCRIPTION	3
A. PROGRAM PURPOSE	3
B. PROGRAM AUTHORITY	4
II. AWARD INFORMATION	4
A. AWARD TYPE AND AMOUNT	4
B. PERIOD OF PERFORMANCE	5
III. ELIGIBILITY INFORMATION	5
A. ELIGIBLE APPLICANTS	5
B. COST SHARING	6
C. OTHER INFORMATION	6
IV. APPLICATION AND SUBMISSION INFORMATION	8
A. HOW TO OBTAIN AN APPLICATION PACKAGE	8
B. CONTENT AND FORM OF APPLICATION SUBMISSION	8
C. SUBMISSION DATE, TIME, PROCESS AND ADDRESS	26
D. INTERGOVERNMENTAL REVIEW	28
E. FUNDING RESTRICTIONS	28
F. OTHER SUBMISSION REQUIREMENTS	33
V. APPLICATION REVIEW INFORMATION	33
A. CRITERIA	33
B. REVIEW AND SELECTION PROCESS	34
VI. AWARD ADMINISTRATION INFORMATION	39
A. AWARD NOTICES	39
B. ADMINISTRATIVE AND NATIONAL POLICY REQUIREMENTS	39
C. REPORTING	44
VII. AGENCY CONTACTS	45
VIII. OTHER INFORMATION	45
A. WEB-BASED RESOURCES	45
B. INDUSTRY COMPETENCY MODELS AND CAREER CLUSTERS	45
C. WORKFORCEGPS RESOURCES	46
D. SKILLSCOMMONS RESOURCES	46
E. LINKING EMPLOYMENT ACTIVITIES PRE-RELEASE (LEAP) IMPLEMEN	47

F. PAST DOL EVALUATIONS AND EVIDENCE	47
IX. OMB INFORMATION COLLECTION	48
APPENDIX A	49
APPENDIX B	61

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The Employment and Training Administration (ETA), U.S. Department of Labor (DOL, or the Department, or we), announces the availability of approximately \$25,000,000 in grant funds authorized by the Further Consolidated Appropriations Act, 2024 (Pub. L. 118-47) and Section 169 of the Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (WIOA) for Program Year 2024 (July 1, 2024, through June 30, 2025).

This Funding Opportunity Announcement (FOA) provides the opportunity for public or private non-profit organizations, including women, minority, community, and faith-based organizations; public institutions of higher education, including Hispanic-serving Institutions, Historically Black Colleges and Universities, Tribally-controlled, and Alaska and Hawaii Native-serving higher education institutions; nonprofit post-secondary education institutions with or without 501(c)(3) status; unions, labor or labor-management organizations; non-profit industry organizations; state and local governments; and Indian or Native American entities eligible for grants under Section 166 of WIOA to provide reentry programming to eligible, incarcerated individuals prior to release from state correctional facilities or county or local jails and to continue comprehensive services after release. By beginning reentry services while participants are still incarcerated and continuing post-release, these projects are designed to eliminate the time gap between release from jail or prison and enrollment into a workforce development reentry program. These programs will lead to skills-based employment, improve individuals' transition back into their communities, and reduce recidivism.

Pre-release services will assist incarcerated individuals in men's and women's facilities who enter the program within 20 to 270 days from their scheduled release date to prepare for returning to their communities. Pre-release occupational training is highly encouraged. Participants must be able to maintain the same caseworker pre- and post-release. Post-release activities must include skill-building services, including either registered apprenticeships or other occupational training in in-demand industries, as determined by local area need, that lead to industry-recognized credentials.

Partners must also work towards increasing employment opportunities for participants post-release with an aim towards boosting labor supply in critical industry sectors facing increased demand, workforce gaps, or supply chain challenges. Applicants are more likely to be successful under the scoring criteria if they show they will partner with employers, unions or other industry organizations that commit to providing employment, work experience, onsite job-related mentoring, and training to participants that lead to good jobs. The criteria gauge job quality, which may be characterized by elements such as offering career progression into family sustaining higher wages; benefits that promote economic security and mobility such as health insurance, retirement, workers' compensation, paid leave and caregiving supports; and

opportunities where employers give workers a voice on the job and a free and fair chance to collectively bargain. The criteria also gauge how applicants' for lived experiences of incarceration and/or community violence of the applicant's staff, leadership board, or committee members have influenced or enhanced the organization.

ETA plans to award approximately 9 grants with a ceiling amount of up to \$4 million each. Applicants may propose a lesser amount based on the number of participants they propose to serve. ETA may award more grants if funds are available. These grants will have a 3- to 6-month planning period, a 24- to 27-month period of employment and training services, and 12 months of follow-up services for a total of a 42-month grant performance period. Future funding opportunities may take into account grantee performance on this grant. These projects will serve adults aged 18 or older who have been convicted under federal, state, or local law and are incarcerated in state correctional facilities or local or county jails with scheduled release dates within 20 to 270 days of enrollment in the project. Applicants may submit only one application.

ETA is committed to awarding grants to high-quality applicants who are serving geographic areas that have a scarcity of reentry services. In making awards, ETA will consider the existing landscape of reentry services in the geographic area that an applicant targets for service.

I. FUNDING OPPORTUNITY DESCRIPTION

A. PROGRAM PURPOSE

This announcement solicits applications for Pathway Home 6 grants.

The purpose of this program is to provide eligible incarcerated individuals in men's and women's state correctional facilities or local or county jails with workforce services prior to release and to continue services after release by transitioning the participants into reentry programs in the communities to which they will return. The FOA refers to these communities as the application's "target communities" or "target areas"; they are the areas where the applicants will be providing reentry services. These grants are job-driven and build connections to local employers and unions that will enable justice-involved persons to secure employment in good jobs, while advancing opportunities for individuals facing significant barriers to labor market reentry, including incarcerated women and communities of color.

These projects ensure that participants in reentry from incarceration are prepared to meet the needs of their local labor markets with the skills valued by employers and support the Administration's goal to build modern and sustainable infrastructure. Applicants must ensure that occupational training provided has no federal, state, or local regulations that restrict individuals with criminal history records from obtaining licenses or other necessary credentials in that career. Therefore, applicants will need to research existing barriers for individuals with criminal records in relation to specific industries. Employer and union connections will inform specific program curricula and ensure relevance to the needs of local businesses and jobs. Teaching justice-involved individuals foundational skills, such as job readiness, employability, digital and financial literacy, and job search strategies, in addition to providing preapprenticeship, Registered Apprenticeships, and occupational training leading to industry-recognized credentials, can provide access to employment and reduce the likelihood of recidivism. Applicants are encouraged to utilize staff that have personal experience with incarceration and/or community violence are able to build relationships with participants based upon shared

experiences and be non-judgmental. These staff can model trust, commitment, stability, and successful reentry. Thus, staff with lived experience of incarceration and/or community violence are encouraged.

Due to the complex nature of this grant, applicants are required to employ one full-time staff person with 100% of their time dedicated to the grant as the program manager/director of the project.

B. PROGRAM AUTHORITY

Title I of Division D of the Further Consolidated Appropriations Act, 2024 (Pub. L. 118-47), and Section 169 of the Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (WIOA) authorizes this program.

II. AWARD INFORMATION

A. AWARD TYPE AND AMOUNT

Funding will be provided in the form of a grant.

We expect availability of approximately \$25,000,000 to fund approximately 9 grants. You may apply for a ceiling amount of up to \$4,000,000. Awards made under this Announcement are subject to the availability of federal funds. In the event that additional funds become available, we reserve the right to use such funds to select additional grantees from applications submitted in response to this Announcement.

Applicants must request funding that is commensurate with the scope and scale of the project proposed, as described below.

We have established the required minimum number of enrollees during the period of performance, based on the amount of funds requested by the applicant (see *Figure 1* below). Applicants must clearly identify in the project abstract the proposed number of participants to be enrolled over the life of the grant, based on the minimums identified in the table below, for which they are seeking funding. Applicants that fail to propose to serve the minimum number of participants required per the table below will be disqualified because their applications will be considered non-responsive.

Figure 1. Required Minimum Participants to be Enrolled During the Grant Period Based on Funding Request		
Funding Request	Minimum Participants Enrolled During Grant Period	
\$999,999 or less	100	
\$1,000,000 – 1,499,999	150	
\$1,500,000 – 1,999,999	200	
\$2,000,000 – 2,499,999	250	

\$2,500,000 – 2,999,999	300
\$3,000,000 – 3,499,999	350
\$3,500,000 – 4,000,000	400

Figure 1 above identifies the minimum number of participants the project must enroll during the grant period based on the applicant's requested funding amount. Applicants may request any funding amount up to \$4,000,000 as long as the proposed minimum number of participants enrolled meets or exceeds the minimum required according to the above table. For example, an applicant requesting funding in the amount of \$2,000,000 must propose to enroll no fewer than 250 participants but may propose to enroll more than 250. Applicants should refer to Section IV.B.3.a. Statement of Need for information on how they will be scored on the proposed targets.

B. PERIOD OF PERFORMANCE

The period of performance is 42 months with an anticipated start date of 07/01/2025. This performance period includes all necessary implementation and start-up activities.

III. ELIGIBILITY INFORMATION

A. ELIGIBLE APPLICANTS

The following organizations are eligible to apply:

- Non-profit organizations with or without 501(c)(3) status, including women's, minority, community, and faith-based organizations;
- Public institutions of higher education, including Hispanic-Serving Institutions,
 Historically Black Colleges and Universities, Tribally controlled, and Alaska and Hawaii
 Native-serving higher education institutions;
- Nonprofit post-secondary education institutions with or without 501(c)(3) status;
- State or local governments;
- State and local workforce boards:
- Any Indian or Native American entity eligible for grants under Section 166 of WIOA;
- Labor or labor management organizations; and
- Non-profit industry organizations.

Applicants, based on Employer Identification Numbers, who received funding from the Pathway Home 4 [FOA-ETA-23-04] and Pathway Home 5 [FOA-ETA-24-05] competitions are not eligible for this competition, and their applications will be considered non-responsive.

The applicant agency or organization must partner with the state correctional facility or local or county jail for the project in order to have access to participants during their incarceration. These partnerships must be documented through Letters of Commitment or Memoranda of Understanding between the applicant, and each identified mandatory partner as described in Section IV.B.3(d)(i). Letters must identify the name of the target community to be served, how

many people were incarcerated in the proposed facility, and how many people were released into the proposed <u>target community</u> from that facility the prior year in order to document that there are enough potential participants to justify the requested funding amount. Letters must also state if the facility has participated or is currently participating in the DOL Pathway Home program. Applicants must also include documentation that the facilities where participants will reside at the time of enrollment are defined by state or local law as state correctional facilities or local or county jails for adults.

PLEASE NOTE: In the event that more than one Pathway Home 6 application proposes to serve the same facility, the Department may consider the strength of the Memorandum of Understanding or Letter of Commitment between the applicant and the facility when deciding on an awardee.

B. COST SHARING

This program does not require cost sharing. Including such funds is not one of the application screening criteria and applications that include any form of cost sharing will not receive additional consideration during the review process. Instead, the agency considers any resources contributed to the project beyond the funds provided by the agency as leveraged resources. Section IV.B.2 provides more information on leveraged resources.

C. OTHER INFORMATION

1. Application Screening Criteria

You should use the checklist below as a guide when preparing your application package to ensure that the application has met all of the screening criteria. Note that this checklist is only an aid for applicants and should not be included in the application package. We urge you to use this checklist to ensure that your application contains all required items. If your application does not meet all of the screening criteria, it will not move forward through the merit review process.

Application Requirement	Instructions	Complete?
The deadline submission requirements are met	Section IV.C	
Eligibility	Section III.A	
The components of the application are saved in any of the specified formats and are not corrupt. (We will attempt to open the document, but will not take any additional measures in the event of problems with opening.)	Section IV.C.2	
Application federal funds request does not exceed the ceiling amount of \$4,000,000	Section II.A	
Proposed number of participants meets the minimum based on the funding request	Section II.A	

Application Requirement	Instructions	Complete?
SAM Registration	Section IV.B.1	
SF-424, Application for Federal Assistance	Section IV.B.1	
SF-424 includes a Unique Entity Identifier (UEI)	Section IV.B.1	
Memoranda of Understanding (MOU) or Letters of Commitment from State Correctional Facility or Local or County Jails as Mandatory Partner	Section IV.B.3(d)(i)	
SF-424A, Budget Information Form	Section IV.B.2	
Budget Narrative	Section IV.B.2	
Project Narrative	Section IV.B.3	
Documentation that the facilities where participants will reside at the time of enrollment are defined as state correctional facilities or local or county jails for adults by state or local law.	Section IV. B.4(a)(3)	

2. Number of Applications Applicants May Submit

We will consider only one application from each organization. If we receive multiple applications from the same organization, we will consider only the most recently received application that met the deadline. If the most recent application is disqualified for any reason, we will not replace it with an earlier application.

3. Eligible Participants

The intent of this FOA is to fund projects that serve diverse participants from a variety of backgrounds who:

- Are at least 18 years old;
- Were convicted under federal, state, or local law and are incarcerated;
- Reside, at the time of enrollment in the project, in a state correctional facility or local or county jail for adults; *please note that these grants cannot support projects in a federal facility or juvenile facility*;
- Have a release date scheduled between 20 to 270 days of the individual's enrollment in the program; and
- Upon release, are scheduled to return to reside in the target area identified in the applicant's application.

Grantees must determine individuals' eligibility before serving them with grant funds. Applicants should consider establishing orientation activities such as initial recruitment, screening, and informal interviews during which grantees can conduct a preliminary program eligibility screening prior to enrolling participants into a grant-funded program.

All Pathway Home participants are eligible for the Federal Bonding Program (FBP). The fidelity bonds, issued by the FBP, give employers a peace of mind when hiring job candidates considered higher risk. For more information on how to collaborate with state bonding coordinators, visit www.bonds4jobs.com.

NOTE: Male participants are required to register for the Selective Service before participating in services. Grantees are to determine eligibility of male participants by accessing the Selective Service System at: https://www.sss.gov/. For additional guidance, including how this requirement applies to male participants incarcerated at the time of their 18th birthdays, please see Training and Employment Guidance Letter (TEGL) 11-11, Change 2, TRAINING AND EMPLOYMENT GUIDANCE LETTER No. 11-11, Change 2 | U.S. Department of Labor (dol.gov). This guidance applies to grants authorized by WIOA.

Veterans' Priority for Participants

38 U.S.C. 4215 requires grantees to provide priority of service to veterans and spouses of certain veterans for the receipt of employment, training, and placement services in any job training program directly funded, in whole or in part, by DOL. The regulations implementing this priority of service are at 20 CFR Part 1010. In circumstances where a grant recipient must choose between two qualified candidates for a service, one of whom is a veteran or eligible spouse, the veterans' priority of service provisions require that the grant recipient give the veteran or eligible spouse priority of service by first providing him or her that service. To obtain priority of service, a veteran or spouse must meet the program's eligibility requirements. Grantees must comply with DOL guidance on veterans' priority. ETA's Training and Employment Guidance Letter (TEGL) No. 10-09 (issued November 10, 2009) provides guidance on implementing priority of service for veterans and eligible spouses in all qualified job training programs funded in whole or in part by DOL. TEGL No. 10-09 is available at https://www.dol.gov/agencies/eta/advisories/training-and-employment-guidance-letter-no-10-09.

IV. APPLICATION AND SUBMISSION INFORMATION

A. HOW TO OBTAIN AN APPLICATION PACKAGE

This FOA, found at www.Grants.gov and https://www.dol.gov/agencies/eta/grants/apply/find-opportunities contains all of the information and links to forms needed to apply for grant funding.

B. CONTENT AND FORM OF APPLICATION SUBMISSION

Applications submitted in response to this FOA must consist of four separate and distinct parts:

- 1. SF-424, "Application for Federal Assistance";
- 2. Project Budget, composed of the SF-424A and Budget Narrative;
- 3. Project Narrative; and
- 4. Attachments to the Project Narrative.

You must ensure that the funding amount requested is consistent across all parts and sub-parts of the application.

1. SF-424, "Application for Federal Assistance"

You must complete the SF-424, "Application for Federal Assistance" (available at https://www.grants.gov/forms/forms-repository/sf-424-family).

- In the address field, fill out the nine-digit (plus hyphen) zip code. Nine-digit zip codes can be looked up on the USPS website at https://tools.usps.com/go/ZipLookupAction!input.action.
- The organization's legal name on the SF-424 should match its name registered in the System for Award Management at www.sam.gov. If unsure of the legal name of your organization, visit www.sam.gov to confirm.
- The organization's Employer Identification Number (EIN) and Unique Entity Identification (UEI) Number should match its information in www.sam.gov. If unsure of the EIN or UEI of your organization, visit www.sam.gov to confirm.
- The SF-424 must clearly identify the applicant and must be signed by an individual with authority to enter into a grant agreement. Upon confirmation of an award, the individual signing the SF-424 on behalf of the applicant is considered the Authorized Representative of the applicant. As stated in block 21 of the SF-424 form, the signature of the Authorized Representative on the SF-424 certifies that the organization is in compliance with the Assurances and Certifications form SF-424B (available at https://www.grants.gov/forms/forms-repository/sf-424-family). You do not need to submit the SF-424B with the application.

In addition, the applicant's Authorized Representative's signature in block 21 of the SF-424 form constitutes assurance by the applicant of compliance with the WIOA 188 rules issued by the Department at 29 CFR 38.25, which includes the following language:

As a condition to the award of financial assistance from the Department of Labor under Title I WIOA, the grant applicant assures that it has the ability to comply fully with the nondiscrimination and equal opportunity provisions of the following laws: Section 188 of the WIOA and its implementing regulations at 29 CFR Part 38, which prohibits discrimination against all individuals in the United States on the basis of race, color, religion, sex (including pregnancy, childbirth, and related medical conditions, transgender status, and gender identity), national origin (including limited English proficiency), age, disability, political affiliation or belief, and against beneficiaries on the basis of either citizenship or status as a lawfully admitted immigrant authorized to work in the United States, or participation in any WIOA Title I—financially assisted program or activity; Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended, which prohibits discrimination on the bases of race, color, and national origin; Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended, which prohibits discrimination against qualified individuals with disabilities; The Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended, which prohibits discrimination on the basis of age; and Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, as amended, which prohibits discrimination on the basis of sex in educational programs.

The grant applicant also assures, that as a recipient of WIOA Title I financial assistance [as defined at 29 CFR 38.4(zz)], it will comply with 29 CFR part 38 and all other regulations implementing the laws listed above. This assurance applies to the grant applicant's operation of the WIOA Title I-financially assisted program or activity, and to all agreements the grant applicant makes to carry out the WIOA Title I-financially assisted program or activity. The grant applicant understands that the United States has the right to seek judicial enforcement of this assurance.

a. Requirement for Unique Entity Identifier

All applicants for federal grant funding must have a Unique Entity Identifier (UEI) and must supply their UEI on the SF-424. The UEI is a 12-character (alpha-numeric) code that uniquely identifies all entities. Any entity registering to do business with the government is required to have one. UEIs are issued by SAM.gov and are a part of an entity's record in the Entity Information section of SAM.gov. If you do not have a UEI, you can get one for free at https://sam.gov.

Grant recipients authorized to make subawards must meet these requirements related to UEI:

- Grant recipients must notify potential subawardees that no entity may receive a subaward unless the entity has provided its UEI.
- Grant recipients may not make a subaward to an entity unless the entity has provided its UEI.

(See Appendix A to 2 CFR Part 25.)

b. Requirement for Registration with SAM

Applicants must register with the System for Award Management (SAM) before submitting an application. Find instructions for registering with SAM at https://www.sam.gov.

A recipient must maintain an active SAM registration with current information at all times during which it has an active federal award or an application under consideration. To remain registered in the SAM database after the initial registration, the applicant is required to review and update the registration at least every 12 months from the date of initial registration or subsequently update its information in the SAM database to ensure it is current, accurate, and complete. For purposes of this paragraph, the applicant is the entity that meets the eligibility criteria and has the legal authority to apply and to receive the award. If an applicant has not fully complied with these requirements by the time the Grant Officer is ready to make a federal award, the Grant Officer may determine that the applicant is not qualified to receive a federal award and use that determination as a basis for making a federal award to another applicant.

2. Project Budget

You must complete the SF-424A Budget Information Form (available at <u>grants.gov/forms/forms-repository/sf-424-family</u>). In preparing the Budget Information Form, you must provide a concise narrative explanation to support the budget request, explained in detail below.

a. Budget Narrative

The Budget Narrative must provide a description of costs associated with each line item on the SF-424A. The Budget Narrative should also include a section describing any leveraged resources provided (as applicable) to support grant activities. Leveraged resources are all resources, both cash and in-kind, in excess of this award. Valuation of leveraged resources follows the same requirements as cost sharing. Applicants are encouraged to leverage resources to increase stakeholder investment in the project and broaden the impact of the project itself.

The Budget Narrative must be sufficiently detailed to demonstrate the average cost-perparticipant. While there is no cost per-participant limit, some participants may require more intensive or expensive services than others. ETA expects that grantees use funds efficiently and maintain fiscal oversight to ensure that grants serve a reasonable number of participants for a given amount of funds. Therefore, if requested, applicants must be able to provide information to justify their cost-per-participant, including financial documentation, contracts or sub-awards, and information on program services (inclusive of case files).

Each category should include the total estimated cost for the period of performance. Use the following guidance for preparing the Budget Narrative.

Personnel: List all staff positions by title (including individuals hired by an employment contract) including the roles and responsibilities. For each position give the annual salary, the percentage of time devoted to the project, and the amount of each position's salary funded by the grant.

Fringe Benefits: Provide a breakdown of the amounts and percentages that comprise fringe benefit costs such as health insurance, FICA, retirement, etc.

Travel: For grantee staff only, specify the purpose, number of staff traveling, mileage, per diem, estimated number of in-state and out-of-state trips, and other estimated costs for each type of travel.

Equipment: Identify each item of equipment you expect to purchase that has an estimated acquisition cost of \$10,000 or more per unit (or if your capitalization level is less than \$10,000, use your capitalization level) and a useful lifetime of more than one year (see 2 CFR Part 200.1 for the definition of Equipment). List the item, quantity, and the unit cost per item.

Items with a unit cost of less than \$10,000 are supplies, not "equipment." In general, we do not permit the purchase of equipment during the last funded year of the grant.

Supplies: Identify the cost of supplies (e.g., general office supplies, desk/chairs, laptops/printers, other specialty items) in the detailed budget per category. Except for general office supplies, list the item, quantity, and the unit cost per item. Supplies include all tangible personal property other than "equipment" (see 2 CFR Part 200.1 for the definition of Supplies).

Contractual: Under the Contractual line item, delineate contracts and subawards separately. Contracts are defined according to 2 CFR Part 200.1 as a legal instrument by which a recipient or subrecipient conducts procurement transactions under a Federal award. A subaward, defined by 2 CFR Part 200.1 means an award provided by a pass-through entity to a subrecipient for the subrecipient to contribute to the goals and objectives of the project by carrying out part of a Federal award received by the pass-through entity. It does not include payments to a contractor or payments to an individual that is a beneficiary of a federal program.

For each proposed contract and subaward, specify the purpose and activities to be provided, and the estimated cost.

Construction: Construction costs are not allowed and this line must be left as zero. Minor alterations to adjust an existing space for grant activities (such as a classroom alteration) may

be allowable. We do not consider this as construction and you must show the costs on other appropriate lines such as Contractual.

Other: Provide clear and specific detail, including costs, for each item so that we are able to determine whether the costs are necessary, reasonable, and allocable. List items, such as stipends or incentives, not covered elsewhere.

Indirect Costs: If you include an amount for indirect costs (through a Negotiated Indirect Cost Rate Agreement or De Minimis) on the SF-424A budget form, then include one of the following:

a) If you have a Negotiated Indirect Cost Rate Agreement (NICRA), provide an explanation of how the indirect costs are calculated. This explanation should include which portion of each line item, along with the associated costs, are included in your cost allocation base. Also, provide a current version of the NICRA.

or

b) If you intend to claim indirect costs using the 15 percent de minimis rate, please confirm that your organization meets the requirements as described in 2 CFR Part 200.414(f). Clearly state that your organization does not have a current negotiated (including provisional) rate, and is not one described in 2 CFR Part 200, Appendix VII(D)(1)(b).

Applicants choosing to claim indirect costs using the de minimis rate must use Modified Total Direct Costs (defined by DOL below) as their cost allocation base. Provide an explanation of which portion of each line item, along with the associated costs, are included in your cost allocation base. Note that there are various items not included in the calculation of Modified Total Direct Costs. See the definitions below to assist you in your calculation.

- **Modified Total Direct Cost (MTDC) Definition:** To avoid a serious inequity in the distribution of indirect costs, DOL defines MTDC as all direct salaries and wages, applicable fringe benefits, materials and supplies, services, travel, and up to the first \$50,000 of each subaward or subcontract (regardless of the period of performance of the subawards and subcontracts under the award). MTDC excludes equipment, capital expenditures, charges for patient care, rental costs, tuition remission, scholarships and fellowships, participant support costs and the portion of each subaward or subcontract in excess of \$50,000.
- You will also note that participant support costs are not included in modified total direct costs. Participant support costs are defined below.
- 2 CFR Part 200.1 Participant Support Cost means direct costs that support participants (see definition for Participant in § 200.1) and their involvement in a Federal award, such as stipends, subsistence allowances, travel allowances, registration fees, temporary dependent care, and per diem paid directly to or on behalf of participants.

See Section IV.B.4. and Section IV.E.1 for more information. Additionally, the following link contains information regarding the negotiation of Indirect Cost Rates at DOL: https://www.dol.gov/agencies/oasam/centers-offices/office-of-the-senior-procurement-executive/cost-price-determination-division.

Indirect-type costs (such as top management salaries, financial oversight, human resources, payroll, personnel, auditing costs, accounting and legal, etc. used for the general oversight and administration of the organization) **must not be classified as direct costs**; these types of costs are recovered as part of charging the de minimis or NICRA rate. Note that the SF-424, SF-424A, and Budget Narrative must include the entire federal grant amount requested (not just one year).

While budgeting for this work, note that up to 5 percent of grant funds may be used to provide emergency assistance for housing, substance abuse treatment, and mental health treatment for participants. Grantees are strongly encouraged to have partnerships in place to address routine barriers to reentry (e.g., housing, legal services, substance abuse treatment, and mental health counseling). Grantees must submit a written policy on the use of these funds as a condition of award.

Additionally, while budgeting for this work, note the project manager/director must be one employee at 100% FTE and may not be two or more people totaling 100% FTE. The project manager is to be one person who is managing this Pathway Home 6 grant.

All applicants must include in their budget funds to cover travel to DOL-sponsored technical assistance training events, as required. DOL expects Pathway Home grantees to attend the DOL-sponsored New Grantee Orientation during the first year of grant award and annual peer-to-peer training or national conferences in subsequent years. Applicants must budget for different levels of staff to these national trainings. Applicants may allocate funds to travel outside of DOL-sponsored events only if the amount is reasonable, as defined in 2 CFR 200.404, and the event will provide a direct benefit to the program.

Do not show leveraged resources on the SF-424 and SF-424A. You should describe leveraged resources in the Budget Narrative.

Applicants should list the same requested federal grant amount on the SF-424, SF-424A, and Budget Narrative. If minor inconsistencies are found between the budget amounts specified on the SF-424, SF-424A, and the Budget Narrative, ETA will consider the SF-424 the official funding amount requested. However, if the amount specified on the SF-424 would render the application nonresponsive, the Grant Officer will use his or her discretion to determine whether the intended funding request (and cost sharing if applicable) is within the responsive range.

3. Project Narrative

The Project Narrative must demonstrate your capability to implement the grant project in accordance with the provisions of this Announcement. It provides a comprehensive framework and description of all aspects of the proposed project. It must be succinct, self-explanatory, and well-organized so that reviewers can understand the proposed project.

The Project Narrative is limited to 25 double-spaced single-sided 8.5 x 11 inch pages with Times New Roman 12-point text font and 1-inch margins. You must number the Project Narrative beginning with page number 1.

We will not read or consider any materials beyond the specified page limit in the application review process.

The following instructions provide all of the information needed to complete the Project Narrative. Carefully read and consider each section, and include all required information in your Project Narrative. The agency will evaluate the Project Narrative using the evaluation criteria identified in Section V.A. You must use the same section headers identified below for each section of the Project Narrative.

Please be advised, full points will not be awarded for simply repeating the language in the FOA. For example, the FOA states, in part, "Applicants must demonstrate a comprehensive understanding of the need, including the poverty rate of the planned target area..." Full points will not be awarded if the application reads, "ABC Non-profit grant program will demonstrate a comprehensive understanding of the need, including the poverty rate of the targeted area." The application must clearly and accurately discuss the required factors.

a. Statement of Need (Up to 6 Points)

Scoring under this criterion will be based on the extent to which the below factors are clearly and accurately addressed.

- (i.) Applicants must demonstrate a comprehensive understanding of the need, including the poverty rate of the planned target area, the gap in resources in the target area, and the consequences of not addressing the need. Applicants must describe existing service delivery offerings for the target population in the intended target area, including within the state correctional facility or local or county jail, and show that there is unmet demand for your services. (Up to 2 points)
- (ii.) Applicants must clearly indicate the number of participants to be served and demonstrate through an explanation and letters of commitment or MOUs that there is a sufficient pool of eligible participants in the state correctional facility or local or county jail who are returning to the target area. Applications not demonstrating a sufficient pool of eligible participants will receive zero points for this rating factor. (Up to 4 points)

b. Performance Data Collection Strategies (Up to 6 Points)

Scoring under this criterion will be based on the extent to which the following factors are clearly and accurately addressed:

- (i.) Applicants must describe a clear and realistic plan to track performance on the WIOA primary indicators below, including staff and/or partner roles in tracking and reporting. Plans and strategies are to be specific, quantifiable statements and clearly linked to each WIOA primary indicator of performance. If applicants are not local workforce development boards, they may collaborate with such organizations around data collection. Applicants may propose their own additional performance measures with specific numeric goals. Plans should address outcomes pre- and post-release from incarceration, and include co-enrollment of participants in WIOA, if applicable. (Up to 4 points)
- (ii.) Applicants must describe a clear and realistic plan to track and report recidivism rate based on the definition provided in this FOA. Plans should specify the intended

source(s) of recidivism data, and staff and/or partner roles in tracking and reporting. (Up to 2 points)

WIOA Primary Indicators of Performance:

Grantees must report on the following six WIOA primary indicators of performance. These indicators are:

- Employment Rate Second Quarter After Exit. (Goal is 55 percent)
- Employment Rate Fourth Quarter After Exit. (Goal is 45 percent)
- Median Earnings Second Quarter After Exit. (Goal is \$6,000 for grantees with target areas where the minimum wage is \$10 per hour or more. Goal is \$5,000 for grantees with target areas where the minimum wage is \$9.99 per hour or less)
- Credential Attainment. (Goal is 60 percent)
- Measurable Skill Gains. (Goal is 65 percent)
- Effectiveness in Serving Employers. (There is no set goal in this FOA. PH-5 grantees are establishing the baseline for this indicator.)

Additional information on these performance indicators is available in Training and Employment Guidance Letter (TEGL) 10-16, Change 3: "Performance Accountability Guidance for Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (WIOA) Title I, Title II, Title III and Title IV Core Programs," found at https://www.dol.gov/agencies/eta/advisories/tegl-10-16-change-3.

Reentry Employment Opportunities (REO) Performance Indicator

Grantees must also track and report:

Recidivism rate: The percentage of participants convicted of a new criminal offense
committed within 12 months of their release from the correctional facility. Grantees must
track recidivism until the end of the grant period of performance to achieve this measure.
The goal for this measure is that grantees achieve a recidivism rate lower than the
recidivism rate for the state in which the grantee is operating.

The Department expects grantees to track and report the primary indicators of performance as listed in WIOA section 116(b)(2)(A)(i), as well as recidivism rate and participation rate. As part of their data collection, all grantees must request participants' social security numbers (SSNs). While REO grantees are required to request participants' SSNs, participants cannot be denied services if they choose not to disclose.

Additional information on allowable data sources is available in Training and Employment Guidance Letter (TEGL) 23-19, Change 2, Attachment II: "Guidance for Validating Required Performance Data Submitted by Grant Recipients of U.S. Department of Labor (DOL) Workforce Programs, Attachment II: Source Documentation for WIOA Core/Non-Core Programs" available at: https://www.dol.gov/agencies/eta/advisories/tegl-23-19-change-2.

c. Project Design (Up to 22 Points)

- (i.) Applicants must propose a coherent, realistic and clear plan to meet or exceed DOL performance indicator goals of the grant, as well as any applicant-proposed performance goals. (Up to 2 points)
- (ii.) Applicants must address factors that might accelerate or decelerate the required

work, such as facility-related restrictions. Justify your approach while taking into account barriers that may affect the project's success. Include viable procedures to provide services in the event internet is unavailable inside the state correctional facility or local or county jail. (Up to 2 points)

- (iii.) Applicants must describe a coherent and realistic recruitment plan to ensure that partners can access the participants inside the state correctional facility or local or county jail as needed. The plan must include a feasible process to identify and select participants, including the waiting list process. (Up to 4 points)
- (iv.) Applicants must identify and explain how they will provide wrap-around services that support the short-term and long-term success of participants to obtain steady employment, including methods of expected delivery. This, at a minimum, includes all of the following employment and career services pre-release: job preparation, comprehensive case management, developing IDPs using state and local labor market information (LMI) that identify barriers to employment (additional information regarding "career" services, as defined in WIOA, can be found in Section 134I(2) and in TEGL 19-16 TRAINING AND EMPLOYMENT GUIDANCE LETTER No. 19-16 U.S. Department of Labor (dol.gov), needs assessment, career exploration and planning, assistance with obtaining state identification, legal assistance (e.g., modification of child support orders, expungement proceedings, securing participant licenses, child custody assistance, and protective and restraining order assistance), trauma informed care, mental health and academic counseling, and referrals to the legal and social services required to help them transition back to their communities. Pre-release occupational training is highly encouraged. (Up to 4 points)
- (v.) The applicant must provide, as an attachment to the Project Narrative, a clear and realistic sample schedule of activities for a month of pre-release operations. These activities must include, at a minimum, the items listed above in Section IV.B.3.(c)(iv). The sample schedule must take into account the inmates' opportunities for movement throughout the facility and ensure that all program participants have adequate opportunities to access the pre-release program; the applicant must identify the curriculum that will be utilized for employability skills and job readiness development activities. (Up to 2 points)
- (vi.) Applicants must identify and explain how they will provide post-release skill-building services, including Registered Apprenticeships and occupational training in indemand industries that lead to industry-recognized credentials and how the IDP links to employment. (Up to 2 points)
- (vii.) Applicants must describe how the IDP links to post-release and follow-up services including services to address barriers to reentry, such as housing, mental health, and substance abuse treatment ensuring a continuum of services. Explain how assessments, including an assessment of each individual's risk of recidivism and their level of job readiness, will be incorporated into the IDP. (Up to 2 points)
- (viii.) Applicants must clearly and realistically describe the following: how the same

caseworker providing pre-release services for a participant will be retained and engaged post-release; what services, if any, will be delivered to the participant during his or her first 72 hours of the transition from correctional custody to the community, and how follow-up activities will be delivered and by whom. Follow-up services must include more than contacts solely to secure performance outcome documentation. (Up to 2 points)

(ix.) Applicants must provide, as an attachment to the Project Narrative, a clear, coherent and realistic timeline of key events (as described in the Project Narrative's subsections on Performance Data Collection Strategies, Project Design, and Partnerships) to meet stated outcomes. (Up to 2 points)

d. Partnerships (Up to 24 Points)

Applicants must identify and provide a Memorandum of Understanding or a Letter of Commitment from each state correctional facility or local or county jail with which the applicant intends to partner for this project. Applicants may propose to partner with state correctional facilities *or* local or county jails.

NOTE: Memoranda of Understanding (MOU) and Letters of Commitment must be included as attachments and will not count against the page limit for the project narrative.

Scoring under this criterion will be based on the extent to which the following factors are clearly and accurately addressed:

- i. Mandatory Partnerships (Up to 8 points)
- 1. The comprehensiveness of the identified partnership with the state correctional facility or local or county jail for the project, documented through the strength of the Letters of Commitment or Memoranda of Understanding. The written commitment(s) must address: how the applicant and partner staff will access the facility (the amount and type of access) to participants granted, how partners will provide services pre-release, accommodations for services to be provided, alignment between commitments and project design and objectives, up-to-date commitments rather than outdated ones, a strategy for internet accessibility or an alternative, resources and space supplied by the correctional facility, facility requirements for incarcerated individuals' participation and selection, and security for applicant and partner staff. The written commitment(s) must also include the correctional facility's confirmation that there is currently no REO Pathway Home 3, 4 or 5 grantee operating in their facility (see Appendix A). Please see the Pathway Home facility list in Appendix A for a list of facilities that DOL Pathway Home 3, 4 and 5 grantees are currently serving. Applications proposing to serve any facilities listed on the DOL Pathway Home facility list, regardless of what is said in any MOU or Letter of Commitment, will receive zero points for this rating factor. (Up to 8 points).
- ii. Recommended Partnerships (Up to 16 points)
- 1. Grantees are strongly encouraged to work with additional partners (other than the partner correctional facility) to leverage resources. In order to be awarded points under this criterion, applicants must i.) Identify local organizations that will provide services to

support program operations (e.g., housing, substance abuse treatment, mental health services, social services, childcare, transportation, and legal services), and must fully describe the specifics of each partnership and provide a Memorandum of Understanding or Letter of Commitment (including any resources to be committed to the program) signed by the authorizing agent of each partner organization. Applicants must explain a clear and realistic plan to engage and coordinate partners, both pre- and post-release, and ensure that all required services are available to all program participants. They must also include a plan for directly linking participants to programs and external service providers before they exit the correctional facility. (Up to 6 points)

- 2. Fully describe their approach to working with local workforce entities (Workforce Development Boards, American Job Centers, one-stop operators, or one-stop partner programs that administer WIOA title I programs). This includes a thorough and clear description of the capacity and role of the partner's involvement. The workforce organizations have expertise in workforce development and may provide leadership in implementing the following types of activities: (1) understanding and analyzing the need for education and training in the local area, including identifying targeted industries and occupations, especially those with good jobs characterized by elements such as offering career progression into family sustaining higher wages and benefits that offer economic security and mobility; sector strategies; hiring needs; and populations to be served; and providing relevant sources of data, including labor market information and other tools or reports; (2) assessing potential participants for the grant program; (3) identifying and referring candidates for education and training in the grant program; (4) providing additional supportive services; (5) connecting and placing participants with employers that have job openings; (6) leveraging other WIOA resources; and (7) collecting, tracking, and reporting participant data. To receive points for this rating factor, applicants need to provide a Memorandum of Understanding or Letter of Commitment (including any resources to be committed to the program) signed by an authorized agent. (Up to 2 points)
- 3. Explain how employers, especially those employers offering good jobs (characterized by elements such as offering career progression into family sustaining higher wages and benefits that offer economic security and mobility), and industry organizations and/or unions will be engaged in the program to inform curriculum development and occupational education; will provide job shadowing, work experience, or mentoring; and will consider participants for employment pre-and-post release. Applicants must provide a realistic and convincing description of how they will secure lasting partnerships with employers and/or industry associations in order to continue to train participants in the skills employers need and increase employment opportunities consistent with the Good Jobs Principles for participants' post-release. To receive points for this rating factor, applicants need to provide a Memorandum of Understanding or Letter of Commitment (including any resources to be committed to the program) signed by an authorized agent. (Up to 4 points)
- 4. Fully describe a feasible and effective approach for targeting employers and outreach strategy, as well as any distinct approaches used to target specific industry employers and/or union trades, including through Registered Apprenticeship programs. Applicants

must describe the degree to which employer partners and/or industry organization partners and/or unions provide high-quality jobs, which may be characterized by elements such as offering career progression into higher wages; benefits that offer economic security and mobility, and opportunities where employers give workers a voice on the job and a free and fair chance to collectively bargain, convey knowledge of workers' rights, and do not require workers to sign non-compete clauses, arbitration agreements and/or class action waivers (unless required by a collective bargaining agreement). (Up to 4 points)

e. Organizational, Administrative, and Fiscal Capacity (up to 8 Points)

- (i.) Applicants must identify and fully describe the organizational structure, as well as the staffing plan for all key staff positions, such as the Project Director/Manager, Fiscal Director/Manager, and Employer Outreach Coordinator. The Project Director/Manager's time, for this Pathway Home 6 grant, must be at 100% FTE, as shown in the budget narrative. Also, applicants must fully explain how the staffing plan and current or planned qualifications of staff supports the successful outcomes of the project. Applicants must fully describe how lived experiences of incarceration and/or community violence of the applicant's staff, leadership board, or committee members have influenced or enhanced the organization. (Up to 6 points)
- (ii.) Applicants must identify and describe the fiscal and administrative controls in place to properly manage federal funds, and the capability of the organization to sustain project activities after federal financial assistance ends. (Up to 2 points)

f. Past Performance – Programmatic Capability (Up to 26 Points)

Organizations will receive points based on past performance data for a single grant. Applicants must use the information below and provide the applicable past performance information. There are different instructions depending on your past grant experience. Applicants must use the below information to determine which instructions are applicable to their organization.

All applicants must provide a performance chart. Applicants that do not provide all of the following will receive 0 points for this criterion.

- Past Performance Chart;
- Previous grantor contact information; and
- A signed Past Performance Chart (only applicable if providing information on a non-ETA grant). For non-ETA grants, if the chart is not signed, a Grantor Verification Letter on Grantor Letterhead must be provided.
- (1) Applicants who have *completed* a REO grant award within the past seven years of the closing date of this Announcement are required to use the following: (Please note this excludes current REO grantees still within their period of performance that have not completed another REO grant within the past seven years.)

Applicants that have completed a REO grant award (e.g. Training to Work 2-4, Face Forward 2-4, National Guard Youth ChalleNGe and Job ChalleNGe Demonstration, Reentry Projects, Pathway Home1-3, Growth Opportunities, Pathway to Justice Careers, Young

Adult Reentry Partnership, Reentry Demonstration Projects for Young Adults, Linking to Employment Activities Pre-release Through Specialized American Job Centers) from ETA within the past seven years of the closing date of this Announcement, will receive points based on the performance from one of their completed REO awards. If you are unsure if you have completed a past REO grant in the past seven years of the closing date, please contact the agency contact listed in Section VII of this FOA. The completed grant information below must be provided in a Past Performance Chart as an attachment to the Project Narrative. See the information and sample Past Performance chart below for the required contents. This past performance document does not count against the page limit. If you have completed a REO grant in the past seven years of the closing date of this Announcement, you must submit performance data for a REO grant, or your application will receive 0 points for this criterion.

- (i) Employment Rate Second Quarter After Exit, as defined under WIOA (Up to 12 points):
- Previously funded REO applicants with employment rates of 90 percent or higher will receive 12 points for this subsection.
- Previously-funded REO applicants with employment rates of 80 percent 89.99 percent will receive 10 points for this subsection.
- Previously-funded REO applicants with employment rates of 70 percent 79.99 percent will receive 8 points for this subsection.
- Previously-funded REO applicants with employment rates of 60 percent 69.99 percent will receive 6 points for this subsection.
- Previously-funded REO applicants with employment rates of 55 percent 59.99 percent will receive 4 points for this subsection.
- Previously funded REO applicants with employment rates of 54.99 percent or below will receive 0 points for this subsection.
- (ii) Credential Attainment Rate, as defined under WIOA (Up to 8 points):
- Previously funded REO applicants with credential attainment rates of 90 percent or higher will receive 8 points for this subsection.
- Previously-funded REO applicants with credential attainment rates of 80 percent 89.99 percent will receive 6 points for this subsection.
- Previously-funded REO applicants with credential attainment rates of 70 percent 79.99 percent will receive 4 points for this subsection.
- Previously-funded REO applicants with credential attainment rates of 60 percent 69.99 percent will receive 2 points for this subsection.
- Previously funded REO applicants with credential attainment rates of 59.99 percent or below will receive 0 points for this subsection.
- (iii) Employment Rate Fourth Quarter After Exit, as defined under WIOA (Up to 6 points):
- Previously funded REO applicants with employment rates of 70 percent or higher will receive 6 points for this subsection.
- Previously funded REO applicants with employment rates of 60 percent 69.99 percent will receive 4 points for this subsection.

- Previously-funded REO applicants with employment rates of 50 percent 59.99 percent will receive 2 points for this subsection.
- Previously funded REO applicants with employment rates of 49.99 percent or lower will receive 0 points for this subsection.

(2) Applicants who have not completed a REO grant award in the past seven years of the closing date of this Announcement are required to use the following:

Applicants that have completed a federally and/or non-federally funded assistance agreement (including grants and cooperative agreements but not federal contracts) similar to the proposed project within the last seven years of the closing date of this Announcement must submit a Past Performance Chart with the info below for the most recently completed agreement. The previous grant must meet the following size, scope, and purpose parameters

- Funding amount of the grant reported on must be at least \$400,000.
- Must have enrolled at least 50 participants during the grant period.
- Must have provided workforce development services.

Applicants that do not provide past performance data from a grant meeting the date, size, scope, and purpose parameters above will receive zero points for this criterion.

If you have not completed a REO grant within the past seven years of the closing date of this announcement, but have completed any other ETA agreement during that time, you must submit a chart for that ETA agreement. A completed grant means that the period of performance has ended.

The information must be provided in a Past Performance Chart as an attachment to the Project Narrative. This past performance document does not count against the page limit.

The chart must detail three significant numeric performance goals and the numeric performance outcomes of those goals to demonstrate if and how the applicant successfully completed and managed the agreement. Applicants should use their performance indicators most similar to: (i) placement in unsubsidized employment, (ii) credential/degree attainment, and (iii) unsubsidized employment retention rate.

ETA views these indicators as the most critical to demonstrating that the applicant's past success in a similar program has prepared its organization to succeed in operating a REO project. Applicants may substitute a different indicator if the substituted indicator is clearly defined and applicable to the outcomes required in this FOA.

- (i) Placement in Unsubsidized Employment or similar outcome (Up to 12 points):
 - Placement rates of 95 percent or higher will receive 12 points for this subsection.
 - Placement rates of 90 percent 94.99 percent will receive 10 points for this subsection.
 - Placement rates of 85 percent 89.99 percent will receive 8 points for this subsection.
 - Placement rates of 80 percent 84.99 percent will receive 6 points for this subsection.
 - Placement rates of 75 percent 79.99 percent will receive 4 points for this subsection.
 - Placement rates of 70 percent 74.99 percent will receive 2 points for this subsection.

- Placement rates of 69.99 percent or below will receive 0 points for this subsection.
- (ii) Credential/Degree Attainment or similar outcome (Up to 8 points):
- Certificate/degree attainment rates of 95 percent or higher will receive 8 points for this subsection.
- Certificate/degree attainment rates of 90 percent 94.99 percent will receive 7points for this subsection.
- Certificate/degree attainment rates of 85 percent 89.99 percent will receive 6 points for this subsection.
- Certificate/degree attainment rates of 80 percent 84.99 percent will receive 5 points for this subsection.
- Certificate/degree attainment rates of 75 percent 79.99 percent will receive 4 points for this subsection.
- Certificate/degree attainment rates of 70 percent 74.99 percent will receive 2 points for this subsection.
- Certificate/degree attainment rates of 69.99 percent or below will receive 0 points for this subsection.
- (iii) Unsubsidized Employment Retention Rate or similar outcome (Up to 6 points):

The percentage of participants who are in unsubsidized employment with the same employer or another employer after 270 days from their initial job placement.

- Employment retention rates of 70 percent or higher will receive 6 points for this subsection.
- Employment retention rates of 60 percent 69.99 percent will receive 4 points for this subsection.
- Employment retention rates of 50 percent 59.99 percent or higher will receive 2 points for this subsection.
- Employment retention rates of 49.99 percent or lower will receive 0 points for this subsection.

(3) Performance Chart

The Past Performance Chart must include the following information:

- Grantor name and contact information
- Project information/grant objectives
- Performance goals and outcomes

In the chart, for the completed grant, applicants must identify the total number of participants they expected to serve (as specified in the grant or required by the grantor) for the performance indicator (goal), and the total number of participants that achieved the performance indicator (outcome) displayed as a fraction (i.e. the numerator equal to the number of program participants who achieved the identified indicator and the denominator equal to the total program participants eligible for the identified indicator). Do not use percentages or decimals in the "goal" or

"outcome" boxes of the chart. Only use percentages in the "rate of performance" box within the chart.

The Past Performance Chart must clearly identify the indicators used. ETA reserves the right to disqualify indicators that are determined not to be sufficiently similar to the indicators above and award zero points for non-qualifying indicators.

Below is a sample format for the Past Performance Chart. For non-ETA grants only, the chart must be signed by the grantor, or a letter must be provided from the grantor verifying the past performance data. This letter must be on grantor letterhead and contain contact information for the grantor. Failure to provide a signed chart or letter signed by the grantor will result in zero points being awarded for the Past Performance criterion. Please note, esignatures are acceptable.

Name of Previous Grantor Organization:				
Grantor Contact - Name, Title, Signature (if non-ETA grant), E-mail Address, and Telephone Number:				
Project Title and Grant Nu	mber:			
Project Period of Performa	nce:			
Number of Participants En	rolled:			
Population Served:	Population Served:			
Performance Goals:				
Performance Indicator	Goal	Outcome	Outcome /Goal (Fraction)	Rate of Goal Achievement (Percentage)
Placement in unsubsidized employment	60	58	58/60	97%
Credential/degree attainment	100	105	105/100	105%
Unsubsidized employment retention rate	42	37	37/42	88%

g. Budget and Budget Narrative (Up to 8 Points)

The Budget and Budget Narrative will be used to evaluate this section. Please see Section IV.B.2 for information on the requirements. The Budget and Budget Narrative do not count against the page limit requirements for the Project Narrative.

i. The extent the proposed expenditures will address all project requirements, and whether key personnel have adequate time devoted to the project to achieve project results. (Up to 2 points)

ii. The extent to which the budget narrative provides a description of costs associated with each line item on the SF-424A, and includes the cost-per-participant. It should also include a complete description of leveraged resources provided (as applicable) to support grant activities. (Up to 4 points)

iii. Whether or not the totals on the SF-424A and the Budget Narrative align. (2 points or no points)

4. Attachments to the Project Narrative

In addition to the Project Narrative, you must submit attachments. You must clearly label all attachments. If documents are required to be signed, E-signatures are also acceptable. We will exclude only those attachments listed below from the page limit. The Budget and Budget Narrative do not count against the page limit requirements for the Project Narrative.

You must not include additional materials such as resumés or general letters of support. You must submit your application in one package because documents received separately will be tracked separately and will not be attached to the application for review.

Save all files with descriptive file names of 50 characters or fewer and use only standard characters in file names: A-Z, a-z, 0-9, and underscore (_). File names may not include special characters (e.g. &,-,*,%,/,#), periods (.), blank spaces, or accent marks, and must be unique (e.g., no other attachment may have the same file name). You may use an underscore (example: My_Attached_File.pdf) to separate a file name.

a. Required Attachments

(1) Abstract

You must submit an up to three-page abstract summarizing the proposed project including, but not limited to, the scope of the project and proposed outcomes. Omission of the abstract will not result in your application being disqualified; the lack of the required information in the abstract, however, may impact scoring. See III.C.1 for a list of items that will result in the disqualification of your application. Should you be selected for an award, the information provided in your abstract may be published to a public facing website as a summary of your project. The abstract must include the following:

- the applicant's name;
- the project title and purpose;
- the number of participants to be served;
- the funding level requested;
- the total cost-per-participant;
- intended beneficiaries:
- the name and address of the mandatory partner and whether that partner is a state correctional facility or local or county jail;
- the list of the name(s) of other partners;
- sub-recipient activities, if applicable;

- the list of the specific cities, towns, or counties that the applicant plans to serve and identification of whether each city, town, or county is rural or urban; and
- a brief summarization of the proposed project including, but not limited to, the activities to be performed, the scope of the project and proposed outcomes.

(2) Letter of Commitment/Memorandum of Understanding from Correctional Facility Submit a signed and dated Letter of Commitment or Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) between the applicant and each state correctional facility or local county jail that will serve as a mandatory partner (an email or other form of written commitment is also acceptable). See Section IV.B.3(d)(i). Applications that do not include this written commitment will be found non-responsive. Please note, general Letters of Support are not acceptable. Letters of Support will not be counted towards, or as, Letters of Commitment and/or MOUs. Applications that do not include this written commitment will be found non-responsive.

(3) Facility Documentation

Applicants must provide documentation that the facilities where participants will reside at the time of enrollment are defined as state correctional facilities or local or county jails for adults by state or local law. Applications that do not include this documentation will be found nonresponsive.

Documentation must be signed (e-signature accepted), dated, and on letterhead from the facility, the sheriff's department that operates the local jail, or the State's department of corrections, whichever is applicable.

b. Requested Attachments

We request the following attachments, but their omission will not cause us to disqualify the application. The omission of the attachment will, however, impact scoring unless otherwise noted.

(1) Past Performance Documentation

This attachment must include the Chart of Past Performance. For non-ETA grants, the chart must be signed by the Grantor. For non-ETA grants, if the chart is not signed, a Grantor Verification Letter, on Grantor Letterhead must be provided.

See Section IV.B.3.(f) for which applicants are to submit this documentation and additional instructions.

These documents must be uploaded as an attachment to the application package and labeled "Past Performance."

(2) Letters of Commitment or MOUs

Submit signed and dated Letters of Commitment or Memoranda of Understanding (an email or other form of written commitment is also acceptable) between the applicant and recommended partner organizations and/or sub-grantees that propose to provide services to support the program model and lead to the identified outcomes. See Section IV.B.3.d.2.

These letters must be uploaded as an attachment to the application package and labeled "Letters of Commitment."

(3) Indirect Cost Rate Agreement

If you are requesting indirect costs based on a Negotiated Indirect Cost Rate Agreement approved by your federal Cognizant Agency, then attach the most recently approved Agreement. (For more information, see Section IV.B.2. and Section IV.E.1.) This attachment does not impact scoring of the application.

This document must be uploaded as an attachment to the application package and labeled "NICRA."

(4) Financial System Risk Assessment Information

All applicants are requested to submit Funding Opportunity Announcement Financial System Risk Assessment Information. See Section V.B.2 for a sample template and additional instructions. This attachment does not impact the scoring of the application.

(5) Sample Schedule of Activities

Submit a sample schedule of activities for a month of pre-release operations. These activities must include all required career services for participants as specified in Section IV.B.3.(c)(v).

(6) Timeline of all Key Activities

Submit a timeline which includes all key activities as described in Section IV.B.3.(c)(ix). (See Appendix B for a suggested template.)

C. SUBMISSION DATE, TIME, PROCESS AND ADDRESS

Due Date for Applications:

March 14, 2025

You must submit your application electronically on https://www.grants.gov no later than 11:59 p.m. Eastern Time on the closing date.

Applicants are encouraged to submit their application before the closing date to minimize the risk of late receipt. We will not review applications received after 11:59 p.m. Eastern Time on the closing date. We will not accept applications sent by hard-copy, e-mail, telegram, or facsimile (FAX).

1. Hardcopy Submission

No applications submitted in hardcopy by mail or hand delivery (including overnight delivery) will be accepted for this funding opportunity.

2. Electronic Submission through Grants.gov

Applicants submitting applications must ensure successful submission <u>no</u> <u>later than 11:59 p.m.</u> **Eastern Time on the closing date**. Grants.gov will subsequently validate the application.

The process can be complicated and time-consuming. We strongly advise you to initiate the process as soon as possible and to plan for time to resolve technical problems. Note that validation does not mean that your application has been accepted as complete or has been accepted for review by the agency. Rather, grants.gov verifies only the submission of certain parts of an application.

a. How to Register to Apply through Grants.gov

Read through the registration process carefully before registering. These steps may take as long as four weeks to complete, and this time should be factored into plans for timely electronic submission in order to avoid unexpected delays that could result in the rejection of an application.

Applicants must follow the online instructions for registration at https://www.grants.gov/web/grants/applicants/organization-registration.html. We recommend that you prepare the information requested before beginning the registration process. Reviewing and assembling required information before beginning the registration process will alleviate last-minute searches for required information and save time.

An application submitted through Grants.gov constitutes a submission as an electronically signed application. The registration and account creation with Grants.gov, with E-Biz Point of Contact (POC) approval, establishes an Agency Organizational Representative (AOR). When an application is submitted through Grants.gov, the name of the AOR who submitted the application is inserted into the signature line of the application, serving as the electronic signature. The E-Biz POC must authorize the individual who is able to make legally binding commitments on behalf of your organization as the AOR; this step is often missed and it is crucial for valid submissions.

b. How to Submit an Application to DOL via Grants.gov

Grants.gov applicants can apply online using Workspace. Workspace is a shared online environment where members of a grant team may simultaneously access and edit different webforms within an application. For a complete workspace overview, refer to https://www.grants.gov/web/grants/applicants/workspace-overview.html. For access to complete instructions on how to apply for opportunities, refer to https://www.grants.gov/web/grants/applicants/apply-for-grants.html.

When a registered applicant submits an application with Grants.gov, an electronic time stamp is generated within the system when the application is successfully received by Grants.gov. Grants.gov will send the applicant AOR an email acknowledgement of receipt and a tracking number (GRANTXXXXXXXX) with the successful transmission of the application, serving as proof of timely submission. The applicant will receive two email messages to provide the status of the application's progress through the system.

- The first email will contain a tracking number and will confirm receipt of the application by Grants.gov.
- The second email will indicate the application has either been successfully validated or has been rejected due to errors.

Grants.gov will **reject applications if the applicant's registration in SAM is expired.**Only applications that have been successfully submitted by the deadline and later successfully validated will be considered. It is your responsibility to ensure a timely submission. While it is not required that an application be successfully validated before the deadline for submission, it is prudent to reserve time before the deadline in case it is necessary to resubmit an application that has not been successfully validated. Therefore, enough time should be allotted for submission (24-48 hours) and, if applicable, additional time to address errors and receive validation upon resubmission (an additional two business days for each ensuing submission). It is important to note that if enough time is not allotted

and a rejection notice is received after the due date and time, DOL will not consider the application.

To ensure consideration, the components of the application must be saved as .doc, .docx, .xls, .xlsx, .rtf or .pdf files. If submitted in any other format, the applicant bears the risk that compatibility or other issues will prevent DOL from considering the application. We will attempt to open the document, but will not take any additional measures in the event of problems with opening.

We strongly advise applicants to use the various tools and documents, including FAQs, which are available on the "Applicant Resources" page at https://www.grants.gov/web/grants/applicants/applicant-faqs.html.

We encourage new prospective applicants to view the online tutorial, "Grant Applications 101: A Plain English Guide to ETA Competitive Grants," available through WorkforceGPS at

https://grantsapplicationandmanagement.workforcegps.org/resources/2022/05/10/15/23/How-to-Apply-for-a-Grant.

To receive updated information about critical issues, new tips for users, and other time-sensitive updates as information is available, you may subscribe to "Grants.gov Updates" at https://www.grants.gov/web/grants/manage-subscriptions.html.

If you encounter a problem with Grants.gov and do not find an answer in any of the other resources, contact one of the following:

- call 1-800-518-4726 or 606-545-5035 to speak to a Customer Support Representative or
- email support@grants.gov.

The Grants.gov Contact Center is open 24 hours a day, 7 days a week but closed on federal holidays. If you are experiencing difficulties with your submission, it is best to call the Grants.gov Support Center and get a ticket number.

Late Applications

We will consider only applications successfully submitted through Grants.gov no later than 11:59 p.m. Eastern Time on the closing date and then successfully validated. <u>You take a significant risk by waiting to the last day to submit through Grants.gov.</u>

D. INTERGOVERNMENTAL REVIEW

This funding opportunity is not subject to Executive Order 12372, "Intergovernmental Review of Federal Programs."

E. FUNDING RESTRICTIONS

All proposed project costs must be necessary and reasonable and in accordance with federal guidelines. Determinations of allowable costs will be made in accordance with the Cost Principles, now found in the Office of Management and Budget's Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform

Guidance), codified at 2 CFR Part 200 and at 2 CFR Part 2900 (Uniform Guidance-DOL specific). Disallowed costs are those charges to a grant that the grantor agency or its representative determines not to be allowed in accordance with the Cost Principles or other conditions contained in the grant. Applicants, whether successful or not, will not be entitled to reimbursement of pre-award costs.

Indirect Costs

As specified in the Uniform Guidance Cost Principles, indirect costs are those costs incurred for a common or joint purpose benefitting more than one cost objective and not readily assignable to the cost objectives specifically benefitted, without effort disproportionate to the results achieved. It may be necessary to establish multiple pools of indirect costs to facilitate equitable distribution of indirect expenses to the cost objectives served. Indirect cost pools must be distributed to benefitted cost objectives on basis that will produce an equitable result in consideration of relative benefits derived. An indirect cost rate is required when an organization operates under more than one grant or other activity, whether federally-assisted or not. You have two options to claim reimbursement of indirect costs.

Option 1: You may use a NICRA or Cost Allocation Plan (CAP) supplied by the federal Cognizant Agency. If you do not have a NICRA/CAP or if you have a pending NICRA/CAP, and in either case choose to include estimated indirect costs in your budget, at the time of award the Grant Officer will release funds in the amount of 15 percent of Modified Total Direct Costs (see DOL's definition below) to support indirect costs. Within 90 days of award, you are required to submit an acceptable indirect cost proposal or CAP to your Federal Cognizant Agency to obtain a provisional indirect cost rate. (See Section IV.B.4. for more information on NICRA submission requirements.)

Option 2: Any organization that does not have a current negotiated (including provisional) rate, with the exceptions noted at 2 CFR Part 200.414(f) in the Cost Principles, may elect to charge a de minimis rate of 15 percent of modified total direct costs (see DOL's definition below). The de minimis rate may be used indefinitely. When applying the de minimis rate, costs must be consistently charged as either direct or indirect costs and may not be double charged or inconsistently charged as both. Once elected, the recipient or subrecipient must use the de minimis rate for all Federal awards until such time as the award recipient or subrecipient chooses to receive a negotiated rate. (See 2 CFR Part 200.414(f) for more information on use of the de minimis rate.)

Modified Total Direct Cost definition: To avoid a serious inequity in the distribution of indirect costs, DOL defines MTDC as all direct salaries and wages, applicable fringe benefits, materials and supplies, services, travel, and up to the first \$50,000 of each subaward or subcontract (regardless of the period of performance of the subawards and subcontracts under the award). MTDC excludes equipment, capital expenditures, charges for patient care, rental costs, tuition remission, scholarships and fellowships, participant support costs and the portion of each subaward or subcontract in excess of \$50,000.

Salary and Bonus Limitations

None of the funds appropriated under the heading "Employment and Training Administration" in the appropriation statute(s) may be used by a recipient or subrecipient of such funds to pay the

salary and bonuses of an individual, either as direct costs or indirect costs, at a rate in excess of Executive Level II. The Executive Level II salary may change yearly and is located on the OPM.gov website. This limitation does not apply to contractors (vendors) providing goods and services as defined in 2 CFR 200.331. Where States are recipients of such funds, States may establish a lower limit for salaries and bonuses of those receiving salaries and bonuses from subrecipients of such funds, taking into account factors including the relative cost of living in the state, the compensation levels for comparable State or local government employees, and the size of the organizations that administer Federal programs involved including ETA programs. See the Program Authority found in Section I.B, and TEGL 05-06 for additional information: https://www.dol.gov/agencies/eta/advisories/training-and-employment-guidance-letter-no-05-06.

DOL Disclaimer

If applicable, the following standard ETA disclaimer needs to be on all products developed in whole or in part with grant funds.

"This workforce product was funded by a grant awarded by the U.S. Department of Labor's Employment and Training Administration. The product was created by the grantee and does not necessarily reflect the official position of the U.S. Department of Labor. The U.S. Department of Labor makes no guarantees, warranties, or assurances of any kind, express or implied, with respect to such information, including any information on linked sites and including, but not limited to, accuracy of the information or its completeness, timeliness, usefulness, adequacy, continued availability, or ownership. This product is copyrighted by the institution that created it."

Intellectual Property Rights and Open Licensing

Pursuant to 2 CFR Part 2900.13, and 2 CFR 200.315(d), to ensure that the Federal investment of DOL funds has as broad an impact as possible and to encourage innovation in the development of new learning materials, the grantee will be required to license to the public all work created with the support of the grant under an open license.

The term 'open license' means a worldwide, royalty-free, non-exclusive, perpetual (for the duration of applicable copyright), irrevocable, standard open copyright license and must grant the public permission to access, reproduce, publicly perform, publicly display, adapt, distribute and otherwise use the work and adaptations of the work for any purposes, subject only to the condition that attribution be given to authors and rights holders as designated.

Work that must be openly licensed includes both new content created with the grant funds and modifications made to pre-existing, grantee-owned content using grant funds. This license allows subsequent users to copy, distribute, transmit, and adapt the copyrighted work and requires such users to attribute the work in the manner specified by the grantee. Notice of the license shall be affixed to the work. As part of the requirement to openly license grant-funded products, grantees must post their products (with the open license affixed) to a public distribution platform.

Only work that is developed by the recipient in whole or in part with grant funds is required to be licensed under the open license. Pre-existing copyrighted materials licensed to or purchased by the grantee from third parties, including modifications of such materials, remain subject to the intellectual property rights the grantee receives under the terms of the particular license or

purchase. In addition, works created by the grantee without grant funds do not fall under the open licensing requirement.

The purpose of the open licensing requirement is to ensure that materials developed with funds provided by these grants result in work that can be freely reused and improved by others. When purchasing or licensing consumable or reusable materials, the grantee is expected to respect all applicable federal laws and regulations, including those pertaining to the copyright and accessibility provisions of the Federal Rehabilitation Act.

Questions about open licensing as it applies to this specific funding opportunity should be submitted to the ETA Grants Management Specialist specified in Section I. The Department will provide technical assistance to support open licensing during the period of performance.

Separate from the open license to the public, the Federal Government reserves a paid-up, nonexclusive, and irrevocable license to reproduce, publish, or otherwise use, and to authorize others to use for federal purposes (i) the copyright in all products developed under the grant, including a subaward or contract under the grant or subaward; and (ii) any rights of copyright to which the recipient, subrecipient, or a contractor purchases ownership under an award (including, but not limited to, curricula, training models, technical assistance products, and any related materials). Such uses include, but are not limited to, the right to modify and distribute such products worldwide by any means, electronically or otherwise. The grantee may not use federal funds to pay any royalty or license fee for use of a copyrighted work, or the cost of acquiring by purchase a copyright in a work, where the Department has a license or rights of free use in such work. If revenues are generated through selling products developed with grant funds, including intellectual property, DOL treats such revenues as program income. Such program income is added to the grant and must be expended for allowable grant activities in accordance with the provisions of the grant award and 2 CFR 200.307.

Credential Transparency

The Department wishes to ensure that individuals, employers, educators, and training providers have access to the most complete, current and beneficial information about providers, programs credentials, and competencies supported with these federal funds. Thus, we require that information about the industry-recognized credentials described in this section be made publicly accessible through the use of linked open data formats that support full transparency and interoperability. This includes all industry-recognized credentials that are awarded using grant funds under this Announcement, where such credentials were previously developed by a grant lead or partner or are developed using grant funds. Credentials include, but are not limited to, diplomas, badges, certificates, certifications, and degrees of all levels and types. Formats may include, but are not limited to, the use of credential transparency description language specifications. DOL will provide specific guidance and technical assistance on credential transparency. Grantees must submit an implementation plan for credential transparency and must complete implementation of the plan before the period of performance ends, as specified in DOL technical assistance.

Use of Grant Funds for Participant Wages

Organizations that receive grants through this FOA may use grant funds to pay for the wages of participants where the objective assessment and the IDP indicate that work experiences are

appropriate. In addition, grantees are encouraged to partner with other local, state, or Federally-funded programs and resources for participant payments and other participant supports. Further, providing stipends to training enrollees for wage replacement is an allowable cost under this FOA. Payment may take the form of wages or stipends. Generally, participants may receive stipends for participating in classes and training. Wages are compensation for services performed for an employer. Grantees must comply with WIOA Section 181 and WIOA regulations detailing the applicable wage and labor standards. When paying participant stipends, grantees must maintain documentation of the process for determining the amount of the stipend and the distribution. Grantees providing wages or stipends to participants should be aware of the implications under IRS provisions. Please consult www.irs.gov for more information.

In addition, grantees may provide incentive payments to participants for recognition and achievement tied to training activities and work experiences. Incentive payments must align with the goals of the grant. The grantee must have policies and procedures in place governing the award of incentives; any incentives provided under the grant must align with these organizational policies. Generally, incentive payments are considered miscellaneous compensation and are taxable. Please consult www.irs.gov for more information. Under this FOA, grantees can use no more than 1.5 percent of the grant award for incentive payments.

Needs-related payments are a form of supportive services paid directly to participants that enable the individual to participate in training. No more than 10 percent of grant funds awarded under this FOA may be used for needs-related payments, such as those authorized under WIOA to assist participants remaining in training and often used by participants to pay for food, utility bills, or other immediate needs. Needs-related payments are paid directly to participants and must tie directly to the need identified, and grantees must ensure the payments are documented to support both the participant's need for the service *as well* as the actual transaction. Grantees must have a consistent policy in place on the provision of needs-related payments. For additional information, please review 20 CFR 680.930. Though there is no cap on the use of grant funds for supportive services (with the exception of needs-related payments as noted above), ETA strongly encourages applicants to provide necessary supportive services through partners to support individuals' participation in employment-related activities and training.

Supportive services are a routine part of high-quality workforce development programs, and evidence shows that they contribute to participants completing programs, particularly those from underserved communities, which leads to opportunities for advancement into better jobs. Supportive services can include, but are not limited to, childcare, transportation, food, mental health counseling, legal assistance, financial counseling, referrals for drug treatment, provision of work tools or work clothes, and needs-related payments/emergency cash assistance.

Up to 5 percent of grant funds may be used to provide emergency assistance for housing, substance abuse treatment, and mental health treatment for participants. ETA requires grantees to have partnerships in place to address routine barriers to reentry (e.g., housing, legal services, substance abuse treatment, and mental health counseling). Grantees must have a consistent policy in place on the provision of emergency assistance and must submit a written policy on the use of these funds as a condition of award.

F. OTHER SUBMISSION REQUIREMENTS

Withdrawal of Applications: You may withdraw an application by written notice to the Grant Officer at any time before an award is made.

V. APPLICATION REVIEW INFORMATION

A. CRITERIA

We have instituted procedures for assessing the technical merit of applications to provide for an objective review of applications and to assist you in understanding the standards against which your application will be judged. The evaluation criteria are based on the information required in the application as described in Sections IV.B.2. (Project Budget) and IV.B.3. (Project Narrative). Reviewers will award points based on the evaluation criteria described below.

Section IV.B.3 (Project Narrative) of this FOA has several "section headers" (e.g. IV.B.3.a), Statement of Need). Each of these "section headers" of the Project Narrative may include one or more "criterion," and each "criterion" includes one or more "rating factors," which provide detailed specifications for the content and quality of the response to that criterion. Each of the rating factors have specific point values assigned. These point values are the number of points possible for the application to earn for the rating factor.

Criterion	Points (maximum)
Statement of Need (See Section IV.B.3.a. Statement of Need)	6 total
2. Performance Data Collection Strategies (See Section IV.B.3.b. Performance Strategies)	6 total
3. Project Design (See Section IV.B.3.c. Project Design)	22 total
4. Partnerships (See Section IV.B.3.d. Partnerships)	24 total
5. Organizational, Administrative, and Fiscal Capacity (See Section IV.B.3.e. Organizational, Administrative, and Fiscal Capacity)	8 total
6. Past Performance – Programmatic Capability (See Section IV.B.3.f. Past Performance – Programmatic Capability)	26 total
7. Budget and Budget Justification (See Section IV.B.2. Project Budget)	8 total
TOTAL	100

Section IV.B.3, Project Narrative, provides a detailed explanation of the information an application must include (e.g., a comprehensive work plan for the whole period of performance with feasible and realistic dates). Reviewers will rate each "rating factor" based on how fully and convincingly the applicant responds. For each "rating factor" under each "criterion,"

panelists will determine whether the applicant thoroughly meets, partially meets, or fails to meet the "rating factor," unless otherwise noted in Section IV.B.3, based on the definitions below:

Standard Rating	Definition	Standard for Calculating Points
Thoroughly Meets	The application thoroughly responds to the rating factor and fully and convincingly satisfies all of the stated specifications.	Full Points
Partially Meets	The application responds incompletely to the rating factor or the application convincingly satisfies some, but not all, of the stated specifications.	Half Points
Fails to Meet	The application does not respond to the rating factor or the application does respond to the rating factor but does not convincingly satisfy any of the stated specifications.	Zero Points

In order to receive the maximum points for each rating factor, applicants must provide a response to the requirement that fully describes the proposed program design and demonstrates the quality of approach, rather than simply re-stating a commitment to perform prescribed activities. In other words, applicants must describe why their proposal is the best strategy and how they will implement it, rather than that the strategy contains elements that conform to the requirements of this FOA.

B. REVIEW AND SELECTION PROCESS

1. Merit Review and Selection Process

A technical merit review panel will carefully evaluate applications against the selection criteria to determine the merit of applications. These criteria are based on the policy goals, priorities, and emphases set forth in this FOA. Up to 100 points may be awarded to an applicant, depending on the quality of the responses provided. The final scores (which may include the mathematical normalization of review panels) will serve as the primary basis for selection of applications for funding. The panel results are advisory in nature and not binding on the Grant Officer. The Grant Officer reserves the right to make selections based solely on the final scores or to take into consideration other relevant factors when applicable. Such factors may include the geographic distribution of funds, limiting the saturation of funds in a target area, strength of commitment from the correctional facility, and other relevant factors. The Grant Officer may consider any information that comes to their attention.

The government may elect to award the grant(s) with or without discussion with the applicant. Should a grant be awarded without discussion, the award will be based on the applicant's signature on the SF-424, including electronic signature via E-Authentication on https://www.grants.gov, which constitutes a binding offer by the applicant.

2. Risk Review Process

Prior to making an award, ETA will review and consider any information about the applicant that

is in the responsibility/qualification records available in SAM.gov (see 41 U.S.C. 2313). Applicants may review and comment on any information in the responsibility/qualification records available in SAM.gov. Before making decisions in the risk review required by 2 CFR 200.206 and 2 CFR 2900.5, ETA will consider any comments by the applicant, along with information available in the responsibility/qualification records in SAM.gov. Additionally, ETA will comply with the requirements of 2 CFR Part 180 implemented at 2 CFR Part 2998 (Non-procurement Debarment and Suspension). This risk evaluation may incorporate results of the evaluation of the applicant's eligibility (application screening) or the quality of its application (merit review). If ETA determines that an award will be made, special conditions that correspond to the degree of risk assessed may be applied to the award. Criteria to be evaluated include the following:

- i. Financial stability. The applicant's record of effectively managing financial risks, assets, and resources;
- ii. Management systems and standards. Quality of management systems and ability to meet the management standards prescribed in the Uniform Grant Guidance;
- iii. History of performance. The applicant's record of managing previous and current Federal awards, including compliance with reporting requirements and conformance to the terms and conditions of Federal awards, if applicable;
- iv. Reports and findings from audits performed under Subpart F–Audit Requirements of the Uniform Grant Guidance or the reports and findings of any other available audits and monitoring reports containing findings, issues of non-compliance, or questioned costs;
- v. Ability to effectively implement requirements. The applicant's ability to effectively implement statutory, regulatory, and other requirements imposed on recipients.

NOTE: As part of ETA's Risk Review process, the Grant Officer will determine the following:

- If the applicant had any restriction on spending for any ETA grant due to adverse monitoring findings; or
- If the applicant received a High Risk determination in accordance with <u>TEGL 23-15</u>.

Depending on the severity of the findings and whether the findings were resolved, the Grant Officer may, at their discretion, elect not to fund the applicant for a grant award regardless of the applicant's score in the competition.

All applicants are requested to submit the following information as an attachment to their application (suggested template below) for ETA to assess the applicant's Financial System. This information will be taken into account as one component of ETA's Risk Review Process. Applicants may use the suggested template or answer the questions in a separate attachment. It is unlikely that an organization will be able to manage a federal grant without the following system/processes in place. Applicants are expected to have these in place before applying for a grant with ETA.

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF LABOR -EMPLOYMENT AND TRAINING ADMINISTRATION

(ETA)

FUNDING OPPORTUNITY ANNOUNCEMENT: FINANCIAL SYSTEM RISK ASSESSMENT

TIOUEDUNIENT	
SECTION A:	
PURPOSE	

The financial responsibility of grantees must be such that the grantee can properly discharge the public trust which accompanies the authority to expend public funds. Adequate administrative and financial systems including the accounting systems should meet the following criteria as contained in 2 CFR 200 and 2 CFR 2900.

- (1) Accounting records should provide information needed to adequately identify the receipt of funds under each grant awarded and the expenditure of funds for each grant.
- (2) Entries in accounting records should refer to subsidiary records and/or documentation which support the entry and which can be readily located.
- (3) The accounting system should provide accurate and current financial reporting information.
- (4) The accounting system should be integrated with an adequate system of internal controls to safeguard the funds and assets covered, check the accuracy and reliability of accounting data, promote operational efficiency, and encourage adherence to prescribed management policies.

management ponerest		
	SECTION B: GENERAL	
1. Applicant Legal Name (as it app	pears in SAM.gov):	
a. When was the organization founded/incorporated (month, day, year):c. Employer Identification Number:	b. Principal Officers Names, Title, Email Address President/Chair Board of Directors: Chief Executive Officer:	
d. Number of Employees Full Time: Part Time:	Chief Financial Officer: Accounting/Budget Officer:	
2. Is the organization or institution organization: Yes No If yes, please provide details as to the profit, nonprofit, LLC, etc) and if it the organization in relation to this general section.	he nature of the company (for provides services or products to	3. Total Sales/Revenues in most recent accounting period. (12 months) \$
	SECTION C: ACCOUNTING SYSTEM	

NOTE: Provide a detailed response (on a separate page on your organization's letterhead and signed/dated by a Principal Officer) for any items 2-9 of Section C that

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF LABOR -EMPLOYMENT AND TRAINING **ADMINISTRATION**

(ETA)

FUNDING OPPORTUNITY ANNOUNCEMENT: FINANCIAL SYSTEM RISK **ASSESSMENT**

have "No" or "Not Sure" answer(s), providing enough information to clearly reflect

have "No" or "Not Sure" answer(s), providing enough information to clearly reflect the expertise of the organization in these areas.					
adequacy of the accounting system for the collection	1. Has any Government Agency rendered an official written opinion concerning the adequacy of the accounting system for the collection, identification and allocation of costs under Federal contracts/grants? Yes No				
performing review:	b. Attach a copy review and any s correspondence, documents, etc.	subseq	uen	ıt	
	Internally Developed	Web	-bas	sed	
3. Does the accounting system identify the receipt a	and	Ye	N	Not	
expenditure of program funds separately for each co		S	0	Sure	
4. Does the accounting system provide for the reco	_		N	Not Sure	
expenditures for each grant/contract by the compone budget cost categories shown in the approved budget	<u> </u>	S	0		
5. Are time distribution records maintained for an e	1 0	Ye	N	Not Sure	
his/her effort can be specifically identified to a partiobjective?	icular cost	S	0		
6. If the organization proposes an overhead rate, do	es the	Ye	N	Not Sure	
accounting system provide for the segregation of dinindirect expenses?	rect and	S	0		
7. Does the organization have an approved indirect	cost rate or	Ye	N	Not Sure	
cost allocation plan?		S	0		
If so, who approved it (Federal Cognizant Agency of through Entity)? What are the effective dates?	or a Pass-				
8. Does the accounting/financial system include but	0 0	Ye	N	Not Sure	
controls to preclude incurring obligations in excess	of:	S	0	Not Sure	
a. Total funds available for a grant?			N		
b. Total funds available for a budget cost category (e.g. Personnel, s o Travel, etc)?					
9. Does the organization or institution have an inter	rnal control	V۵	N	Not Sure	
structure that would provide reasonable assurance the		S	0	THUI DUIC	
funds, assets, and systems are safeguarded?	D	-	Ū		
SECTION D: STABILITY	FINANCIAL				

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF LABOR -EMPLOYMENT AND TRAINING ADMINISTRATION

(ETA)

FUNDING OPPORTUNITY ANNOUNCEMENT: FINANCIAL SYSTEM RISK ASSESSMENT

1. Is there any legal matter or an ongoing financial concern that may impact the organization's ability to manage and administer the grant? Yes No If yes, please explain briefly.

SECTION E: FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

- 1. Did an independent certified public accountant (CPA) ever examine the financial statements? Yes No
- 2. If an independent CPA review was performed please attach a copy of their latest report and any management letters issued. Enclosed N / A
- 3. If an independent CPA was engaged to perform a review and no report was issued, please provide details and an explanation below:

SECTION F: PAYMENT MANAGEMENT SYSTEM ACCOUNT

1. ETA uses the Department of Health and Human Services Payment Management System (PMS). If your organization has an ETA PMS account, provide the PMS EIN and the PMS account (e.g., 89X7X) where grant funding should be placed if selected for award.

SECTION G: ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

1. Use this space for any additional information (indicate section and item numbers if a continuation)

VI. AWARD ADMINISTRATION INFORMATION

A. AWARD NOTICES

All award notifications will be posted on the ETA Homepage at https://www.dol.gov/agencies/eta/. Applicants selected for award will be contacted directly before the grant's execution. Non-selected applicants will be notified by mail or email and may request a written debriefing on the significant weaknesses of their application.

Selection of an organization as a recipient does not constitute approval of the grant application as submitted. Before the actual grant is awarded, we may enter into negotiations about such items as program components, staffing and funding levels, and administrative systems in place to support grant implementation. If the negotiations do not result in a mutually acceptable submission, the Grant Officer reserves the right to terminate the negotiations and decline to fund the application. We reserve the right not to fund any application related to this FOA.

B. ADMINISTRATIVE AND NATIONAL POLICY REQUIREMENTS

1. Administrative Program Requirements

All grantees will be subject to all applicable federal laws and regulations, including the OMB Uniform Guidance, and the terms and conditions of the award. The grant(s) awarded under this FOA will be subject to the following administrative standards and provisions.

- i. Non-Profit Organizations, Educational Institutions, For-profit entities and State, Local, and Indian Tribal Governments–2 CFR Part 200 (Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards) and 2 CFR Part 2900 (DOL's Supplement to 2 CFR Part 200).
- ii. All recipients must comply with the applicable provisions of the Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (WIOA), Public Law No. 113-328, 128 Stat. 1425 (codified as amended at 29 U.S.C. 3101 et. seq.) and the applicable provisions of the regulations at 20 CFR Part 675 et. seq. Note that 20 CFR Part 683 (Administrative Provisions) allows unsuccessful applicants to file administrative appeals.
- iii. All entities must comply with 29 CFR Part 93 (New Restrictions on Lobbying), 29 CFR Part 94 (Governmentwide Requirements for Drug-Free Workplace (Financial Assistance)), 2 CFR Part 180 (OMB Guidance to Agencies on Government-wide Debarment and Suspension (Non-procurement)), and, where applicable, 2 CFR Part 200 (Audit Requirements).
- iv. 29 CFR Part 2, subpart D—Equal Treatment in Department of Labor Programs for Faith-Based and Community Organizations; Protection of Religious Liberty of Department of Labor Social Service Providers and Beneficiaries.
- v. 29 CFR Part 31—Nondiscrimination in Federally Assisted Programs of the Department of Labor—Effectuation of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964.
- vi. 29 CFR Part 32—Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Handicap in Programs or Activities Receiving Federal Financial Assistance.
- vii. 29 CFR Part 35—Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Age in Programs or Activities Receiving Federal Financial Assistance from the Department of Labor.
- viii. 29 CFR Part 36—Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Sex in Education Programs or Activities Receiving Federal Financial Assistance.

- ix. 29 CFR Part 38 Implementation of the Nondiscrimination and Equal Opportunity Provisions of the Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act.
- x. 29 CFR Parts 29 and 30—Labor Standards for the Registration of Apprenticeship Programs, and Equal Employment Opportunity in Apprenticeship and Training, as applicable.
- xi. The Department of Labor will follow the procedures outlined in the Department's Freedom of Information Act (FOIA) regulations (29 CFR Part 70). If DOL receives a FOIA request for your application, the procedures in DOL's FOIA regulations for responding to requests for commercial/business information submitted to the government will be followed, as well as all FOIA exemptions and procedures. See generally 5 U.S.C. § 552; 29 CFR Part 70.
- xii. Standard Grant Terms and Conditions of Award—see the following link: https://www.dol.gov/agencies/eta/grants/resources.

2. Other Legal Requirements

a. Religious Activities

- i) Faith-based organizations may apply for this award on the same basis as any other organization, subject to the protections and requirements of this subpart and any applicable constitutional and statutory requirements, including 42 U.S.C. 2000bb et seq. DOL will not, in the selection of recipients, discriminate for or against an organization on the basis of the organization's religious character, motives, or affiliation, or lack thereof, or on the basis of conduct that would not be considered grounds to favor or disfavor a similarly situated secular organization.
- (ii) A faith-based organization that participates in this program will retain its independence from the Government and may continue to carry out its mission consistent with religious freedom and conscience protections in Federal law.
- (iii) A faith-based organization may not use direct Federal financial assistance to support or engage in any explicitly religious activities except where consistent with the Establishment Clause of the First Amendment and any other applicable requirements. An organization receiving Federal financial assistance also may not, in providing services funded by DOL, or in conducting outreach activities related to such services, discriminate against a program beneficiary or prospective program beneficiary on the basis of religion, a religious belief, a refusal to hold a religious belief, or a refusal to attend or participate in a religious practice.

Guidance from DOL on the effect of the Religious Freedom Restoration Act on recipients of DOL financial assistance is found at https://www.dol.gov/agencies/oasam/grants/religious-freedom-restoration-act/guidance.

b. Lobbying or Fundraising the U.S. Government with Federal Funds

In accordance with Section 18 of the Lobbying Disclosure Act of 1995 (Public Law 104-65) (2 U.S.C. § 1611), non-profit entities incorporated under Internal Revenue Service Code section 501(c)(4) that engage in lobbying activities are not eligible to receive federal funds and grants. No activity, including awareness-raising and advocacy activities, may include fundraising for, or lobbying of, U.S. federal, state, or local governments (see 2 CFR Part 200.450 for more information).

c. Transparency Act Requirements

You must ensure that you have the necessary processes and systems in place to comply with the reporting requirements of the Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act of 2006 (Pub. Law 109-282), as amended by the Digital Accountability and Transparency Act of 2014 (Pub. Law 113-101), as follows. You must ensure that you have the necessary processes and systems in place to comply with the reporting requirements of the Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act of 2006 (Pub. Law 109-282, as amended by the Government Funding Transparency Act of 2008, Pub. Law 110-252, Title VI, Chap. 2, Sec. 6202), as follows.

- Except for those excepted from the Transparency Act under sub-paragraphs 1, 2, and 3 below, you must ensure that you have the necessary processes and systems in place to comply with the subaward and executive total compensation reporting requirements of the Transparency Act, should you receive funding.
- Upon award, you will receive detailed information on the reporting requirements of the Transparency Act, as described in 2 CFR Part 170, Appendix A.

The following types of awards are not subject to the Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act.

- Federal awards to individuals who apply for or receive federal awards as natural persons (e.g., unrelated to any business or non-profit organization an individual owns or operates);
- 2. Federal awards to entities that had a gross income of less than \$300,000 in the entities' previous tax year; and
- 3. Federal awards, if the required reporting would disclose classified information.

d. Safeguarding Data Including Personally Identifiable Information (PII)

Applicants submitting applications in response to this FOA must recognize that confidentiality of PII and other sensitive data is of paramount importance to the Department of Labor and must be observed except where disclosure is allowed by the prior written approval of the Grant Officer or by court order. By submitting an application, you are assuring that all data exchanges conducted through or during the course of performance of this grant will be conducted in a manner consistent with applicable federal law and TEGL 39-11 (issued June 28, 2012). All such activity conducted by ETA and/or recipient(s) will be performed in a manner consistent with applicable state and federal laws.

By submitting a grant application, you agree to take all necessary steps to protect such confidentiality by complying with the following provisions that are applicable in governing the handling of confidential information: You must ensure that PII and sensitive data developed, obtained, or otherwise associated with DOL/ETA funded grants is securely transmitted.

i. To ensure that such PII is not transmitted to unauthorized users, all PII and other sensitive data transmitted via e-mail or stored on CDs, DVDs, thumb drives, etc., must be encrypted using a Federal Information Processing Standards (FIPS) 140-2 compliant and National Institute of Standards and Technology (NIST) validated cryptographic module.

- You must not e-mail unencrypted sensitive PII to any entity, including ETA or contractors.
- ii. You must take the steps necessary to ensure the privacy of all PII obtained from participants and/or other individuals and to protect such information from unauthorized disclosure. You must maintain such PII in accordance with the ETA standards for information security described in TEGL 39-11 and any updates to such standards we provide to you. Grantees who wish to obtain more information on data security should contact their Federal Project Officer.
- iii. You must ensure that any PII used during the performance of your grant has been obtained in conformity with applicable federal and state laws governing the confidentiality of information.
- iv. You further acknowledge that all PII data obtained through your ETA grant must be stored in an area that is physically safe from access by unauthorized persons at all times and the data will be processed using recipient-issued equipment, managed information technology (IT) services, and designated locations approved by ETA. Accessing, processing, and storing of ETA grant PII data on personally owned equipment, at off-site locations, (e.g., employee's home), and non-recipient managed IT services, (e.g., Yahoo mail), is strictly prohibited unless approved by ETA.
- v. Your employees and other personnel who will have access to sensitive/confidential/proprietary/private data must be advised of the confidential nature of the information, the safeguards required to protect the information, and that there are civil and criminal sanctions for noncompliance with such safeguards that are contained in federal and state laws.
- vi. You must have policies and procedures in place under which your employees and other personnel, before being granted access to PII, acknowledge their understanding of the confidential nature of the data and the safeguards with which they must comply in their handling of such data, as well as the fact that they may be liable to civil and criminal sanctions for improper disclosure.
- vii. You must not extract information from data supplied by ETA for any purpose not stated in the grant agreement.
- viii. Access to any PII created by the ETA grant must be restricted to only those employees of the grant recipient who need it in their official capacity to perform duties in connection with the scope of work in the grant agreement.
- ix. All PII data must be processed in a manner that will protect the confidentiality of the records/documents and is designed to prevent unauthorized persons from retrieving such records by computer, remote terminal, or any other means. Data may be downloaded to, or maintained on, mobile or portable devices only if the data are encrypted using NIST validated software products based on FIPS 140-2 encryption. In addition, wage data may be accessed only from secure locations.
- x. PII data obtained by the recipient through a request from ETA must not be disclosed to anyone but the individual requestor, except as permitted by the Grant Officer or by court order.
- xi. You must permit ETA to make onsite inspections during regular business hours for the purpose of conducting audits and/or conducting other investigations to assure that you are complying with the confidentiality requirements described above. In accordance with

- this responsibility, you must make records applicable to this Agreement available to authorized persons for the purpose of inspection, review, and/or audit.
- xii. You must retain data received from ETA only for the period of time required to use it for assessment and other purposes, or to satisfy applicable federal records retention requirements, if any. Thereafter, you agree that all data will be destroyed, including the degaussing of magnetic tape files and deletion of electronic data.

e. Record Retention

You must follow federal guidelines on record retention, which require that you maintain all records pertaining to grant activities for a period of at least three years from the date of submission of the final expenditure report. See 2 CFR 200.334-200.338 for more specific information, including information about the start of the record retention period for awards that are renewed quarterly or annually, and when the records must be retained for more than three years.

f. Use of Contracts and Subawards

You must abide by the following definitions of contract, contractor, subaward, and subrecipient.

Contract: Contract means a legal instrument by which a recipient or subrecipient conducts procurement transactions under a Federal award. For additional information on subrecipient and contractor determinations, see 2 CFR 200.331. The term as used in this FOA does not include a legal instrument, when the substance of the transaction meets the definition of a federal award or subaward, even if the recipient or subrecipient considers it a contract (see definition of Subaward below).

Contractor: Contractor means an entity that receives a contract as defined above in Contract.

Subaward: Subaward means an award provided by a pass-through entity to a subrecipient for the subrecipient to contribute to the goals and objectives of the project by carrying out part of a Federal award received by the pass-through entity. It does not include payments to a contractor, beneficiary, or participant. A subaward may be provided through any form of legal agreement consistent with criteria in with § 200.331, including an agreement the pass-through entity considers a contract.

Subrecipient: Subrecipient means an entity that receives a subaward from a pass-through entity to carry out part of a Federal award. The term subrecipient does not include a beneficiary or participant. A subrecipient may also be a recipient of other Federal awards directly from a Federal agency.

You must follow the provisions at 2 CFR 200.331-200.333 regarding subrecipient monitoring and management. Also see 2 CFR Part 200.308(f)(6) regarding prior approval requirements for subawards. When awarding subawards, you are required to comply with provisions on government-wide suspension and debarment found at 2 CFR Part 180 and codified at 2 Part CFR Part 2998.

g. Closeout of Grant Award

Any entity that receives an award under this Announcement must close its grant with ETA at the end of the final year of the grant. Information about this process may be found in ETA's Grant Closeout FAO located at

https://www.dol.gov/sites/dolgov/files/ETA/grants/pdfs/GCFAQ.pdf.

3. Other Administrative Standards and Provisions

Except as specifically provided in this FOA, our acceptance of an application and an award of federal funds to sponsor any programs(s) does not provide a waiver of any grant requirements and/or procedures. For example, the OMB Uniform Guidance requires that an entity's procurement procedures ensure that all procurement transactions are conducted, as much as practical, to provide full and open competition. If an application identifies a specific entity to provide goods or services, the award does not provide the justification or basis to sole-source the procurement (i.e., avoid competition).

4. Special Program Requirements

a. ETA Evaluation

As a condition of grant award, grantees are required to participate in an evaluation, if undertaken by DOL. The evaluation may include an implementation assessment across grantees, an impact and/or outcomes analysis of all or selected sites within or across grantees, and a benefit/cost analysis or assessment of return on investment. Conducting an impact analysis could involve random assignment (which involves random assignment of eligible participants into a treatment group that would receive program services or enhanced program services, or into control group(s) that would receive no program services or program services that are not enhanced). We may require applicants to collect data elements to aid the evaluation. As a part of the evaluation, as a condition of award, grantees must agree to: (1) make records available to the evaluation contractor on participants, employers, and funding; (2) provide access to program operating personnel, participants, and operational and financial records, and any other relevant documents to calculate program costs and benefits; and (3) in the case of an impact analysis, facilitate the assignment by lottery of participants to program services, including the possible increased recruitment of potential participants; and (4) follow evaluation procedures as specified by the evaluation contractor under the direction of DOL.

b. Performance Goals

Please note that applicants will be held to outcomes provided, and failure to meet those outcomes may result in technical assistance or other intervention by ETA, and may also have a significant impact on decisions about future grants with ETA.

C. REPORTING

You must meet DOL reporting requirements. Specifically, you must submit the reports and documents listed below to DOL electronically.

1. Quarterly Financial Reports

A Quarterly Financial Status Report (ETA 9130) is required until such time as all funds have been expended or the grant period has expired. Quarterly reports are due by the 15th day of the

second month after each calendar-year quarter. On the final Financial Status Report, you must include any subaward amounts so we can calculate final indirect costs, if applicable. You must use DOL's Online Electronic Reporting System and information and instructions will be provided to grantees. For other guidance on ETA's financial reporting, reference TEGL 20-19 and our webpage at https://www.dol.gov/agencies/eta/grants/management/reporting.

2. Quarterly Performance Reports

The grantee must submit a quarterly performance report by the 15th day of the second month after each calendar-year quarter. The report must include quarterly information on interim indicators and performance goals. The last quarterly progress report will serve as the grant's Final Performance Report. This report must provide both quarterly and cumulative information on the grant performance. Submission requirements will be provided to grantees upon award. We will also provide you with guidance about the data and other information that is required to be collected and reported on either a regular basis or special request basis.

3. Quarterly Narrative Performance Reports

In addition to the Quarterly Performance Report, the grantee must submit the Joint Quarterly Narrative Performance Report Template (ETA 9179) progress report by the 15th day of the second month after each calendar year quarter during which the grant is within the period of performance for the award. The report includes quarterly information regarding accomplishments, including project success stories, upcoming grant activities, and promising approaches and processes, as well as progress toward performance outcomes, including updates on product, curricula, and training development.

VII. AGENCY CONTACTS

For further information about this FOA, please contact Shanell McNamee, Grants Management Specialist, Office of Grants Management, at PH6_FOA-ETA-25-29@dol.gov. Applicants should e-mail all technical questions to PH6_FOA-ETA-25-29@dol.gov and must specifically reference FOA-ETA-25-29, and along with question(s), include a contact name, and phone number. This Announcement is available on the ETA website at https://www.dol.gov/agencies/eta/grants and at https://www.grants.gov.

VIII. OTHER INFORMATION

A. WEB-BASED RESOURCES

DOL maintains a number of web-based resources that may be of assistance to applicants. These include the CareerOneStop portal (https://www.careeronestop.org), which provides national and state career information on occupations; the Service Locator function within the CareerOneStop webpage which provides a directory of the nation's American Job Centers, also known as one-stop centers, (https://www.careeronestop.org/LocalHelp/service-locator.aspx); and the Occupational Information Network (O*NET) Online (https://online.onetcenter.org), which provides occupational competency profiles.

B. INDUSTRY COMPETENCY MODELS AND CAREER CLUSTERS

ETA supports an Industry Competency Model Initiative to promote an understanding of the skill sets and competencies that are essential to an educated and skilled workforce. A competency

model is a collection of competencies that, taken together, define successful performance in a particular work setting. Competency models serve as a starting point for the design and implementation of workforce and talent development programs. To learn about the industry-validated models, visit the Competency Model Clearinghouse (CMC) at https://www.careeronestop.org/CompetencyModel. The CMC site also provides tools to build or customize industry models, as well as tools to build career ladders and career lattices for specific regional economies.

C. WORKFORCEGPS RESOURCES

We encourage you to view the information on workforce resources gathered through consultations with federal agency partners, industry stakeholders, educators, and local practitioners, and made available on WorkforceGPS at https://www.workforcegps.org.

We encourage you to view the online tutorials, "Grant Applications 101: A Plain English Guide to ETA Competitive Grants," and "Grants Application 101: Budgetary Forms - SF-424, 424A, 424B, and Budget Narrative" available through WorkforceGPS at https://grantsapplicationandmanagement.workforcegps.org/resources/2022/05/10/15/23/How-to-Apply-for-a-Grant.

We created Workforce System Strategies to make it easier for the public workforce system and its partners to identify effective strategies and support improved customer outcomes. The collection highlights strategies informed by a wide range of evidence, such as experimental studies and implementation evaluations, as well as supporting resources, such as toolkits. We encourage you to review these resources by visiting https://strategies.workforcegps.org.

We created a technical assistance portal at https://grantsapplicationandmanagement.workforcegps.org/ that contains online training and resources for fiscal and administrative issues. Online trainings available include, but are not limited to, Introduction to Grant Applications and Forms, Indirect Costs, Cost Principles, and Accrual Accounting.

D. SKILLSCOMMONS RESOURCES

SkillsCommons (https://www.skillscommons.org) offers an online library of curriculum and related training resources to obtain industry-recognized credentials in manufacturing, IT, healthcare, energy, and other industries. The website contains thousands of Open Educational Resources (OER) for job-driven workforce development, which were produced by grantees funded through DOL's Trade Adjustment Assistance Community College and Career Training (TAACCCT) program. Community colleges and other training providers across the nation can reuse, revise, redistribute, and reorganize the OER on SkillsCommons for institutional, industry, and individual use.

E. LINKING EMPLOYMENT ACTIVITIES PRE-RELEASE (LEAP) IMPLEMENTATION STUDY

This report explores lessons from the evaluation of the ETA's Linking to Employment Activities Pre-Release (LEAP) grants, funded by DOL's Chief Evaluation Office (CEO). The LEAP pilot tests the creation of jail-based American Job Centers (AJCs) to support the successful reentry of participants and directly link them to community-based AJCs upon release. The evaluation looks at approaches to providing services before and after incarceration across 20 sites based on site visits, phone interviews, focus groups, and grantee quarterly performance reports.

In addition to this report, the evaluation also produced a compendium of 10 issue briefs that summarize key issues important to helping the workforce development and corrections communities improve employment outcomes for those involved in the justice system. The LEAP report does not discuss effectiveness of services and was not intended to make causal conclusions.

You can find the final report, an executive summary, and the LEAP issue brief compendium on CEO's website and below: https://www.dol.gov/asp/evaluation/CompletedStudies.htm.

F. PAST DOL EVALUATIONS AND EVIDENCE

The ETA and the CEO have funded a number of evaluations that are relevant to this grant. These evaluations and other resources may be helpful in identifying research and evidence-based and evidence-informed models and components of services to improve the employment outcomes for young adults that have been involved in the juvenile or adult justice system. These include:

- <u>Evaluation of Pathway Home Grants.</u> ETA and CEO have partnered to fund an ongoing feasibility assessment for a rigorous impact evaluation, as well as an ongoing implementation study of the Pathway Home Reentry Grant program. Based on the results from the feasibility analysis, CEO plans to conduct the most rigorous impact evaluation feasible of the Pathway Home program.
 https://www.dol.gov/agencies/oasp/evaluation/completedstudies/pathway-home-reentry-evaluation
- Evaluation of Grants Serving Young Offenders. ETA funded an evaluation of its Face Forward and Pathways to Justice Careers grant initiatives, between 2013 and 2016. The purpose of the evaluation was to document and identify promising practices from the grantees' experiences of serving young offenders. The evaluation produced three issue briefs, a resource guide, and a case study on operating a vocational training program at a juvenile correctional facility.

 https://wdr.doleta.gov/research/details.cfm?q=&Face%Forward&id=2623

For information on and evidence from the Reentry Employment Opportunities Initiative see the ETA's web page (https://www.dol.gov/agencies/eta/reentry), the Workforce GPS dedicated Community of Practice for those with an interest in collaboration with professional peers (https://reo.workforcegps.org/), and report, The Evaluation of the Re-Integration of Ex-Offenders (RExO) Program: Final Impact Report. As evidence builds on re-entry workforce strategies, the Research and Evaluation Hub (https://evalhub.workforcegps.org/), hosted by WorkforceGPS, will be another resource for accessing studies on a variety of workforce development topics, and to inform service delivery and practices and policy decision-making.

- <u>LEAP</u>. <u>https://wdr.doleta.gov/research/details.cfm?q=LEAP&id=2648</u>
- Supporting Reentry Employment and Success: A Summary of the Evidence for Adults
 and Young Adults. As part of the ongoing Reentry Employment Opportunities
 Evaluation, CEO funded an issue brief that summarized the evidence base for reentry
 employment interventions and services. Supporting Reentry Employment and Success:
 A Summary of the Evidence for Adults and Young Adults, which can be found here.
- <u>Pathway Home</u>. In September 2020, DOL contracted with Mathematica and its partners Social Policy Research Associates (SPR) and the Council of State Governments Justice Center (CSG) to design and carry out an evaluation of the implementation and impact of the Pathway Home Grant Program. In this report, we present designs for three evaluations of grant implementation. <u>Pathway Home Grant Program: Implementation</u> <u>Evaluation Design (dol.gov)</u>
- <u>Clearinghouse for Labor Evaluation and Research (CLEAR)</u>. CLEAR reviews studies in a variety of labor-related topic areas that are determined in collaboration with CEO and DOL agency staff. Relevant CLEAR topic areas include: https://clear.dol.gov/
 - Reentry
 - o Apprenticeship and Work-Based Training
 - o Community College
 - o Opportunities for Youth

IX. OMB INFORMATION COLLECTION

OMB Information Collection No 1225-0086, Expires July 31, 2025.

According to the Paperwork Reduction Act of 1995, no persons are required to respond to a collection of information unless such collection displays a valid OMB control number. Public reporting burden for this collection of information is estimated to average 50 hours per response, including time for reviewing instructions, searching existing data sources, gathering and maintaining the data needed, and completing and reviewing the collection of information.

Send comments about the burden estimated or any other aspect of this collection of information, including suggestions for reducing this burden, to the U.S. Department of Labor, to the attention of the Departmental Clearance Officer, 200 Constitution Avenue NW, Room N1301, Washington, D.C. 20210. Comments may also be emailed to: DOL_PRA_PUBLIC@dol.gov.

PLEASE DO NOT RETURN YOUR GRANT APPLICATION TO THIS ADDRESS. SEND ONLY COMMENTS ABOUT THE BURDEN CAUSED BY THE COLLECTION OF INFORMATION TO THIS ADDRESS. SEND YOUR GRANT APPLICATION TO THE SPONSORING AGENCY AS SPECIFIED EARLIER IN THIS ANNOUNCEMENT.

This information is being collected for the purpose of awarding a grant. DOL will use the information collected through this "Funding Opportunity Announcement" to ensure that grants are awarded to the applicants best suited to perform the functions of the grant. This information is required to be considered for this grant.

Signed 01/10/2025 in Washington, D.C. by: Chaya Anderson Grant Officer, Employment and Training Administration

APPENDIX A

I	OOL PATHWAY HOME 3, 4, and 5 FACILITY LIST		
State	Correctional Facility	Address	Initiative
AL	Elmore Men's Correctional Facility	3521 Marion Spillway Rd, Elmore, AL 36025	PH4
AL	Mobile County Jail	450 St Emanuel St, Mobile, AL 36603	PH5
AL	Julia Tutwiler Prison for Women	8966 US Hwy 231 Wetumpka, AL 36092	PH4
AL	Staton Men's Correctional Facility	2690 Marion Spillway Rd, Elmore, AL 36025	PH4
AR	Arkansas Community Correction	4823 W 7th St, Little Rock, AR 72205	РН3
AR	Arkansas Department of Correction	1302 Pike Avenue, Ste. C North Little Rock, AR 72114	РН3
AR	Jefferson County Jail	890 Free Line Dr, Pine Bluff, AR 71603	PH4
AR	Lincoln County Jail	30298 AR-11, Star City, AR 71667	PH4
AR	Pulaski County Regional Detention Facility	3201 W Roosevelt Rd, Little Rock, AR 72204	PH4
AZ	Adult Detention Center	971 Jason Lopez Cir, Florence, AZ 85132	PH4
AZ	Arizona Department of Corrections, Rehabilitation and Reentry's (ADCRR)	701 E Jefferson St, Phoenix, AZ 85034	PH4
AZ	Maricopa County Sheriff's Office (MCSO)	550 W. Jackson St, Phoenix, AZ 85003	PH4
AZ	Pima County Sheriff's Department (PCSD)	1750 E. Benson Highway, Tucson, AZ 85714	PH4
CA	Amador County Jail	700 Court St, Jackson, CA 95642	PH3
CA	Amistad de Los Angeles	3745 South Grand Ave, Los Angeles, CA 90007	PH5
CA	Calaveras County Jail	1045 Jeff Tuttle Dr, San Andreas, CA 95249	РН3
CA	GEO Reentry Services Male Community Reentry Program	2233 East 9th Street, Long Beach, CA 90813	PH5

]	DOL PATHWAY HOME 3, 4, and 5 FACILITY LIST		
State	Correctional Facility	Address	Initiative
CA	HealthRIGHT 360 Male Community Reentry Program	2307 West 6th Street, Los Angeles, CA 90057	PH5
CA	La Entrada de Los Angeles Female Community Reentry Program (FCRP)	2756 James M Woods Blvd, Los Angeles, CA 90006	PH5
CA	LA CADA Female Community Reentry Program	11121 Bloomfield Ave., Santa Fe Springs, CA 90670	PH5
CA	Mariposa County Jail	5379 Highway 49 N, Mariposa, CA 95338	РН3
CA	San Diego Sheriff's Department	9621 Ridgehaven Ct. San Diego, CA 92123	PH4
CA	Tuolumne County Jail	12915 Justice Ctr Dr, Sonora, CA 95370	РН3
CO	Arkansas Valley Correctional Facility	12750 Hwy 96 at Lane 13, Ordway, CO 81034	PH5
CO	Centennial Correctional Facility	E US Hwy 50 Evans Blvd, Canon City, CO 81212	PH5
CO	Colorado State Penitentiary	50 Evans Road, Canon City, CO 81212	PH5
СО	La Vista Correctional Facility	1401 W 17th Street, Pueblo, CO 81003	PH5
СО	Skyline Correctional Facility	E US Hwy 50 Evans Blvd, Canon City, CO, 81212	PH5
СТ	Bridgeport Correctional Center	1106 North Ave, Bridgeport, CT 06604	PH5
СТ	Carl Robinson Correctional Institution	285 Shaker Rd #44, Enfield, CT 06082	РН3
СТ	Cheshire Correctional Institution	900 Highland Ave, Cheshire, CT 06410	РН3
СТ	Corrigan Correctional Institution	986 Norwich-New London Turnpike, Uncasville, CT 06382	РН3
СТ	Cybulksi Correctional Institution	264 Bilton Rd, Somers, CT 06071	РН3
СТ	Garner Correctional Institution	50 Nunnawauk Rd, Newtown, CT 06470	РН3
СТ	MacDougall-Walker Correctional Institution	1153 East Street S, Suffield, CT 06078	РН3
СТ	Manson Youth Institute	42 Jarvis St, Cheshire, CT 06410	PH5

DOL PATHWAY HOME 3, 4, and 5 FACILITY LIST			
State	Correctional Facility	Address	Initiative
СТ	Osborn Correctional Institution	335 Bilton Road, POB 100, Somers, CT 06071	PH5
СТ	York Correctional Institution	201 W Main St, Niantic, CT 06357	PH3
FL	Atlantic Community Release Center	263 Fairgrounds Road, West Palm Beach, FL, 33411-3639	PH5
FL	Dade Correctional Institution	19000 SW 377th St, Homestead, FL 33034	PH5
FL	Everglades Re-entry Center	1599 SW 187th Ave, Miami, FL 33194	PH5
FL	FL Dept of Corrections - South Florida Reception Center	14000 NW 41st St, Doral, FL 33178	PH4
FL	FL Dept of Corrections- Everglades Correctional Institution	1599 SW 187th Ave, Miami, FL 33194	PH4
FL	Hollywood Community Release Center	8501 Cypress Dr, Pembroke Pines, FL 33025	PH4
FL	Homestead Correctional Institution	SW 380th St, Homestead, FL 33034	PH5
FL	Okeechobee Correctional Institution	3420 NE 168th St, Okeechobee, FL 34972	PH5
FL	Sago Palm Re-entry Center	500 Bay Bottom Rd, Pahokee, FL 33476	PH5
FL	South Florida Reception Center – South Unit	13900 NW 41st St, Miami, FL 33178	PH5
FL	West Palm Beach Community Release Center	261 West Fairgrounds Road, West Palm Beach, FL, 33411-3639	PH5
GA	Georgia Department of Corrections Facilities	7 Martin Luther King, Jr. Dr., S.W., Ste 543, Atlanta, GA 30334	PH5
GA	Atlanta Transitional Center	332 Ponce De Leon Ave. NE Atlanta, GA 30308	PH5
GA	Metro Reentry Facility	1301 Constitution Road SE Atlanta, GA 30316	PH5
GA	Metro Reinvestment Center	1301 Constitution Road SE Atlanta, GA 30316	PH5
GA	Muscogee County Sheriff's Office	700 10th Street, Columbus, GA 31901	РН3
GA	Phillips State Prison	2989 W Rock Quarry Rd NE, Buford, GA 30519	PH5

DOL PATHWAY HOME 3, 4, and 5 FACILITY LIST			
State	Correctional Facility	Address	Initiative
GA	Phillips Transitional Center	2989 W Rock Quarry Rd NE, Buford, GA 30519	PH5
IA	Seventh Judicial District	605 Main St, Davenport, IA 52803	PH4
IA	Work Release Center and Residential Correctional Facility	605 Main St, Davenport, IA 52803	PH4
IL	Winnebago County Jail	650 W. State St. Rockford, IL 61102	PH4
IN	Duval Residential Center	1848 Ludlow Ave. Indianapolis, IN 46201	PH5
IN	Indiana Department of Corrections Marion County Adult Detention Center	675 Justice Wy, Indianapolis, IN 46203	PH4
IN	Indiana Women's' Prison	2596 North Girls School Road, Indianapolis, IN 46214	РН3
IN	Madison Women's Prison	800 Bus Stop Dr., Madison, IN 47250	РН3
IN	Rockville Correctional Facility	811 50 N, Rockville, IN 47872	РН3
KY	Blackburn Correctional Complex	3111 Spurr Rd, Lexington, KY 40511	PH4
KY	Dismas Charities Portland	1501 Lytle St, Louisville, KY 40203	PH4
KY	Dismas Charities St. Patrick's	1301 W Market St, Louisville, KY 40203	PH4
KY	Eastern Kentucky Correctional Complex	200 Road to Justice West Liberty, KY 41472	PH4
KY	Kentucky Correctional Institution for Women	3000 Ash Ave Pewee Valley, KY 40056	PH4
KY	Kentucky Department of Corrections Health Services Building	275 East Main St Frankfort, KY 40602	PH4
KY	Little Sandy Correctional Complex	505 Prison Connector Sandy Hook, KY 41171	PH4
KY	Luther Luckett Correctional Complex	1612 Dawkins Rd LaGrange, KY 40031	PH4
KY	Roederer Correctional Complex	4000 Morgan Rd LaGrange, KY 40031	PH4
KY	Western Kentucky Correctional Complex	374 New Bethel Church Rd Fredonia, KY 42411	PH4

]	DOL PATHWAY HOME 3, 4, and 5 FACILITY LIST		
State	Correctional Facility	Address	Initiative
LA	Elayne Hunt Correctional Center	6925 Hwy 74 in St. Gabriel, Louisiana	PH5
LA	Plaquemines Parish Detention Center (County)	16801 Hwy 15, Davant, LA 70046	РН3
LA	Dixon Correctional Institute (DCI)	5568 LA-68, Jackson, LA 70748	РН3
LA	East Baton Rouge Parish Prison	2867 General Issac Smith, Baton Rouge, LA	РН3
LA	Juvenile Justice Intervention Center	1100 Milton St, New Orleans, LA 70122	РН3
LA	LA Correctional Institute for Men	7205 LA 74, St. Gabriel, LA 70776	РН3
LA	Lafourche Parish Sheriff's Department	2594 Veterans Blvd. Thibodaux, LA	PH5
LA	Louisiana Correctional Institute for Women	15200 Scenic Highway, Baker, LA 70714	РН3
LA	Terrebonne Parish Sheriff's Department: Parish Jail	3211 Grand Calliou Road Houma, LA	PH5
LA	Orleans Justice Center (OJC)	2800 Perdido St, New Orleans, LA 70119	PH4
LA	Orleans Parish Sherriff's Office	2800 Gravier St, New Orleans, LA 70119	РН3
LA	St. Bernard Parish Prison	1900 Paris Road in Chalmette, LA	PH5
MI	Alger Correctional Facility	Industrial Park Dr, Wetmore, MI 49895	РН3
MI	Baraga Correctional Facility	13924 Wadaga Rd, Baraga, MI 49908	РН3
MI	Bellamy Creek Correctional Facility	1727 Bluewater Hwy, Ionia, MI 48846	РН3
MI	Carson City Correctional Facility	10599 E Boyer Rd, Carson City, MI 48811	РН3
MI	Central Michigan Correctional Facility	320 Hubbard St, St. Louis, MI 48880	РН3
MI	Chippewa Correctional Facility	4269 M-80, Kincheloe, MI 49788	РН3
MI	Cooper Street Correctional Facility	3100 Cooper St, Jackson, MI 49201	РН3
MI	Earnest C Brooks Correctional Facility	2500 S Sheridan Dr, Muskegon, MI 49444	РН3

]	DOL PATHWAY HOME 3, 4, and 5 FACILITY LIST		
State	Correctional Facility	Address	Initiative
MI	Genesee County Jail	1002 S Saginaw St, Flint, MI 48502	PH4
MI	Gus Harrison Correctional Facility	2727 E Beecher St, Adrian, MI 49221	РН3
MI	Ionia Correctional Facility (I-MAX)	1576 Bluewater Hwy, Ionia, MI 48846	РН3
MI	Lakeland Correctional Facility	141 1st St, Coldwater, MI 49036	РН3
MI	Macomb Correctional Facility	34625 26 Mile Rd, Lenox, MI 48048	РН3
MI	Marquette Branch Prison	1960 US-41, Marquette, MI 49855	РН3
MI	Muskegon Correctional Facility	2400 S Sheridan Dr, Muskegon, MI 49442	РН3
MI	Newberry Correctional Facility	13747 Co Rd 428, Newberry, MI 49868	РН3
MI	Oaks Correctional Facility	1500 Caberfae Hwy, Manistee, MI 49660	РН3
MI	Parnall Correctional Facility	1780 E Parnall Rd, Jackson, MI 49201	РН3
MI	Richard A. Handlon Correctional Facility	1728 Bluewater Hwy, Ionia, MI 48846	РН3
MI	Robert Cotton Correctional Facility	3500 N Elm Ave, Jackson, MI 49201	РН3
MI	Saginaw Correctional Facility	9625 Pierce Rd, Freeland, MI 48623	РН3
MI	SER Metro-Detroit, Jobs for Progress, Inc	9301 Michigan Ave, Detroit, MI 48210	PH4
MI	Sheriff's Department IGNITE Program	1002 S Saginaw St. Flint, MI 48502	PH4
MI	St. Louis Correctional Facility	8585 N Croswell Rd, St. Louis, MI 48880	РН3
MI	Thumb Correctional Facility	3225 John Conley Dr, Lapeer, MI 48446	РН3
MI	Wayne County Sheriff's Office	4747 Woodward Ave, Detroit, MI 48201	PH4
MI	Women's Huron Valley	3201 Bemis Rd, Ypsilanti, MI 48197	РН3
MI	Woodland Center Correctional Facility	9036 M-36, Whitmore Lake, MI 48189	РН3

DOL PATHWAY HOME 3, 4, and 5 FACILITY LIST			
State	Correctional Facility	Address	Initiative
MN	Minnesota Department of Corrections (MNDOC)	1450 Energy Park Dr., Suite 200 St. Paul, MN 55108	PH4
МО	Algoa Correctional Center (ACC)	8501 No More Victims Rd, Jefferson City, MO 65101	PH4
МО	Boonville Correctional Center (BCC)	1216 E Morgan St, Boonville, MO 65233	PH4
МО	Chillicothe Correctional Center (CCC)	3151 Litton Rd, Chillicothe, MO 64601	PH4
МО	Crossroads Correctional Center (CRCC)	1115 SE Pence Rd, Cameron, MO 64429	PH4
МО	Eastern Reception & Diagnostic Correctional Center (ERDCC)	2727 Highway K Bonne Terre, MO 63628	PH4
МО	Farmington Correctional Center (FCC)	1012 W Columbia St, Farmington, MO 63640	PH4
МО	Fulton Reception and Diagnostic Center (FRDC)	1393 State Route O, Fulton, MO 65251	PH5
МО	Jefferson City Correctional Center (JCCC)	No More Victims Road, Jefferson City, MO 65101	PH5
МО	Missouri Department of Corrections (MO DOC)	3151 Litton Rd, Chillicothe, MO 64601	PH4
МО	Missouri Eastern Correctional Center (MECC)	18701 Historic Rte 66, Pacific, MO 6306	PH4
МО	Moberly Correctional Center (MCC)	5201 South Morley, Moberly, MO 65270	PH5
МО	Northeast Correctional Center (NECC)	13698 Airport Rd Bowling Green, MO 63334	PH4
МО	Ozark Correctional Center (OCC)	929 Honor Camp Lane, Fordland, MO 65652	PH5
МО	Potosi Correctional Center (PCC)	11593 State Highway O, Mineral Point 63660	PH5
МО	South Central Correctional Center (SCCC)	255 West Highway 32, Licking, MO 65542	PH5
МО	Southeast Correctional Center (SECC)	300 East Pedro Simmons Drive, Charleston, MO 63834	PH5
МО	St. Louis County Department of Justice Services	100 S Central Ave, Clayton, MO 63105	PH5

]	DOL PATHWAY HOME 3, 4, and 5 FACILITY LIST		
State	Correctional Facility	Address	Initiative
МО	Tipton Correctional Center (TCC)	619 N Osage Ave, Tipton, MO 65081	PH4
МО	Transition Center of St. Louis (TCSTL)	1621 N. 1st Street, St. Louis, MO 63102	PH5
МО	Western Missouri Correctional Center (WMCC)	609 East Pence Road, Cameron, MO 64429	РН5
МО	Western Reception & Diagnostic and Correctional Center (WRDCC)	3401 Faraon St Joseph, MO 64506	PH4
МО	Women's Eastern Reception, Diagnostic & Corr. Center (WERDCC)	1101 US-54, Vandalia, MO 63382	PH5
MS	George/Green County Correctional Facility	154 Industrial Park Road Lucedale, MS 39452	PH5
MS	Kemper/Neshoba County Correctional Facility	374 Stennis Industrial Park Road DeKalb, De Kalb, MS 39328	PH5
MS	Leake County Correctional Facility	399 C O Brooks St, Carthage, MS 39051	РН5
MS	Marion/Walthall Correctional Facility	503 S Main St, Columbia, MS 39429	РН5
MS	Stone Correctional Facility	1420 Industrial Pk Rd, Wiggins, MS 39577	PH5
NC	Edgecombe County Detention Center	3005 Anaconda Rd, Tarboro, NC 27886	PH5
NC	Nash County Detention Center	222 West Washington Street, Nashville, NC 27856	РН5
NJ	Camden County Jail	330 Federal Street, Camden NJ 08101	РН3
NJ	Salem County Correctional	125 Cemetery Rd, Woodstown, NJ 08098	РН3
NM	Central New Mexico Correctional Facility	1525 Morris Rd, Los Lunas, NM 87031	РН3
NM	Metropolitan Detention Center	100 Deputy Dean Miera Dr SW, Albuquerque, NM 87151	РН3
NM	Western New Mexico Correctional Facility	2111 Lobo Canyon Rd, Grants, NM 87020	РН3
NV	Clark County Detention Center	330 S Casino Center Blvd, Las Vegas, NV 89101	РН3

]	DOL PATHWAY HOME 3, 4, and 5 FACILITY LIST		
State	Correctional Facility	Address	Initiative
NV	Florence McClure Women's Correctional Center, Las Vegas	4370 Smiley Rd, Las Vegas, NV 89115	РН3
NV	Las Vegas Detention Center	3300 Stewart Ave, Las Vegas, NV 89101	РН3
NV	Nevada Department of Corrections	5500 Snyder Ave Bldg 17, Carson City, NV 89701	РН3
NV	North Las Vegas City Jail Corrections Center	2332 Las Vegas Blvd N, North Las Vegas, NV 89030	РН3
NV	Southern Desert Correctional Center, Clark County	20825 Cold Creek Rd, Las Vegas, NV 89166	РН3
NY	Fishkill Correctional Facility	18 Strack Drive, Beacon NY 12508-0307	PH5
NY	Onondaga County Correctional Facility	407 South State St, Syracuse, NY, 13202	РН3
NY	Onondaga County Department of Corrections	6660 E Seneca Turnpike, Jamesville, NY 13078	РН3
NY	Otisville Correctional Facility	57 Sanitorium Road, Otisville, NY 10963-0008	PH5
NY	Queensboro Correctional Facility	47-04 Van Dam Street, Long Island City, NY 11101-3081	PH5
NY	Rikers Island Correctional Facilities	16-06 Hazen St, East Elmhurst, NY 11370	РН3
ОН	Allen Oakwood Correctional	2338 N West St, Lima, OH 45801	РН3
ОН	CCNO (Corrections Center of NW Ohio)	3151 City Rd 2425 Stryker, Ohio 43557	РН3
ОН	Franklin County Community Based Correctional Facility	1745 Alum Creek Dr, Columbus, OH 43207	РН3
ОН	Lorain Correctional Institution	2075 Avon Belden Rd, Grafton, OH 44044	PH5
ОН	Lorain/Medina Community Based Correctional Facility	9892 Murray Ridge Rd, Elyria, OH 44035	PH5
ОН	Lucas County Correctional Treatment Facility	2001 East Central Ave Toledo, OH 43608	PH4
ОН	Mansfield Correctional Institution (ManCI)	1150 North Main St Mansfield, OH 44903	РН3

]	OOL PATHWAY HOME 3, 4, and 5 FACILITY LIST			
State Correctional Facility		Address	Initiative	
ОН	Marion Correctional Institution	940 Marion-Williamsport Rd E, Marion, OH 43302	РН3	
ОН	McDonnell Center Community Based Correctional Facility	3540 Croton Ave #3212, Cleveland, OH 44115	РН5	
ОН	Northeast Reintegration Center	2675 E 30th St, Cleveland, OH 44115	РН5	
ОН	Ohio Department of Rehabilitation and Correction (ODRC)	4545 Fisher Rd D, Columbus, OH 43228	РН3	
ОН	Richland Correctional Institution	1001 S Olivesburg Rd, Mansfield, OH 44905	РН3	
ОН	The WORTH Center	243 E Bluelick Rd, Lima, OH 45801	РН3	
OR	Oregon Department of Corrections	723 Fairview Industrial Drive SE 200, Salem, OR 97302	PH4	
OR	Multnomah County Detention Center	1120 SW Third Avenue Portland, OR 97204	PH5	
OR	Multnomah County Inverness Jail	11540 NE Inverness Dr, Portland, OR 97220	PH5	
PA	Capitol Pavilion	2012 N 4th St, Harrisburg, PA 17102	PH5	
PA	Curran-Fromhold Correctional Center (CFCF)	7901 State Rd., Philadelphia, PA 19136	РН3	
PA	Dauphin County Prison	501 Mall Rd, Harrisburg, PA 17111	PH5	
PA	Dauphin County Work Release Center	919 Gibson Blvd, Harrisburg, PA 17113	PH5	
PA	George W. Hill Correctional Facility	500 Cheyney Rd, Thornton, PA 19373	РН3	
PA	Riverside Correctional Facility (RCF)	8151 State Rd., Philadelphia, PA 19136	РН3	
PA	State Correctional Institution -Mahanoy	301 Morea Rd, Frackville, PA 17932	РН3	
PA	State Correctional Institution - Phoenix	1200 Mokychic Rd, Collegeville, PA 19426	РН3	
PA	State Correctional Institution - Cambridge Springs	451 Fullerton Ave, Cambridge Springs, PA 16403	РН3	

]	DOL PATHWAY HOME 3, 4, and 5 FACILITY LIST		
State	Correctional Facility	Address	Initiative
PA	Philadelphia Industrial Correction Center (PICC)	8301 State Rd., Philadelphia, PA 19136	РН3
RI	Rhode Island Department of Corrections (RI DOC) Primary Contact – Project to occur at RI DOC facilities	40 Howard Avenue, Cranston, RI 02920	PH5
RI	Anthony P. Travisono Intake Service Center	18 Slate Hill Dr, Cranston, RI 02920	PH5
RI	High Security Center	54 Power Rd., Cranston, RI 02920	PH5
RI	Rhode Island Maximum Security Prison	1375 Pontiac Avenue Cranston, RI 02920	PH5
RI	John J. Moran Medium Security Facility	74 W Rd., Cranston, RI 02920	PH5
RI	Minimum Security Facility	16 Howard Ave, Cranston, RI 02920	PH5
RI	Gloria McDonald Maximum and Medium	20 Fleming Rd, Cranston, RI 02920	PH5
SC	Graham Correctional Institution	4450 Broad River Rd Columbia, SC 29210	PH4
SC	Kershaw Correctional Institution and Reentry Center	4848 Gold Mine Hwy, Kershaw, SC 29067	PH4
SC	Leath Correctional Institution	2809 Airport Rd, Greenwood, SC 29649	PH4
SC	Livesay Correctional Institution	104 Broadcast Dr Spartanburg, SC 29303	PH4
SC	Manning Reentry/Work Release Center	502 Beckman Rd, Columbia, SC 29203	PH4
SC	Tyger River Correctional Institution	200 Prison Rd, Enoree, SC 29335	PH5
SC	Wateree River Correctional Institution	8200 State Farm Rd, Rembert, SC 29128	PH4
TX	Adult Detention Center	1211 W. Travis Street, San Antonio, TX 78207	РН3
TX	Dominguez State Jail	6535 Cagnon Road, San Antonio, TX 78252	РН3
TX	Kyle Correctional Center	2300 IH-35, Kyle, TX 78640	РН3
TX	Lockhart Correctional Facility	1400 Industrial Blvd, Lockhart, TX 78644	РН3
TX	Travis County Correctional Complex	3614 Bill Price Road, Del Valle, Texas 78617	РН3

I	OOL PATHWAY HOME 3, 4, and 5 FACILITY LIST		
State	Correctional Facility	Address	Initiative
VA	Bland Correctional Center	256 Bland Farm Rd, Bland, VA 24315	PH5
VA	Botetourt-Craig Jail	205 N Roanoke St, Fincastle, VA 24090	РН5
VA	Greensville Correctional Center	901 Corrections Way, Jarratt, VA 23870	РН5
VA	Lunenburg Correctional Center	690 Falls Rd, Victoria, VA 23974	PH5
VA	Marion Correctional Center	110 Wright Street Marion, VA 24354	РН5
VA	Middle Peninsula Regional Community Center (MPRSC)	170 Oakes Landing Rd, Saluda, VA 23149	РН3
VA	New River Valley Regional Jail	108 Baker Rd, Dublin, VA 24084	PH5
VA	Roanoke City Adult Detention Center	324 Campbell Ave SW, Roanoke, VA 24016	РН5
VA	Roanoke County-Salem Jail	401 E Main St, Salem, VA 24153	PH5
VA	Southwest Virginia Regional Jail Authority (Abingdon Facility)	15205 Joe Derting Dr, Abingdon, VA 24210	PH5
VA	Southwest Virginia Regional Jail Authority (Duffield Facility)	1037 Boone Trail Road Duffield, VA 24244	РН5
VA	Virginia Department of Corrections Prisons	3600 Woods Way, State Farm, VA 23160	РН3
VA	Western Virginia Regional Jail	5885 W River Rd, Salem, VA 24153	PH5
WA	Lewis County Jail	28 SW Chehalis Ave, Chehalis, WA 98532	РН3
WA	Thurston County Accountability and Restitution Center	3491 Ferguson St SW, Tumwater, WA 98512	РН3
WI	Adams County Jail	301 Adams St, Friendship, WI 53934	PH4
WI	Ashland County Sheriff's Office	220 6th St E, Ashland, WI 54806	PH4
WI	Bayfield County Sheriff's Department	615 2nd Ave E, Washburn, WI 54891	PH4
WI	Burnett County Jail	7410 Co Rd K, Siren, WI 54872	PH4
WI	Clark County Jail	517 Court St, Neillsville, WI 54456	PH4
WI	Douglas County Jail	1316 N 14th St, Superior, WI 54880	PH4

]	OOL PATHWAY HOME 3, 4, and 5 FACILITY LIST		
State	Correctional Facility	Address	Initiative
WI	Fond du Lac County Sheriff's Department	180 S Macy St, Fond du Lac, WI 54935	PH4
WI	Forest County Sheriff	100 S Park Ave, Crandon, WI 54520	PH4
WI	Grant County Sheriff's Department	8820 US-61, Lancaster, WI 53813	PH4
WI	Green County Sheriff's Department	2827 6th St, Monroe, WI 53566	PH4
WI	Green Lake County Jail	571 Co Rd A, Green Lake, WI 54941	PH4
WI	Langlade County Jail	840 Clermont St, Antigo, WI 54409	PH4
WI	Price County Sheriff's Department	164 Cherry St, Phillips, WI 54555	PH4
WI	Richland County Jail	181 W Seminary St, Richland Center, WI 53581	PH4
WI	Rock County Sheriff's Department	200 US-14, Janesville, WI 53545	PH4
WI	Rock Valley Community Programs	203 W Sunny Ln, Janesville, WI 53546	PH4
WI	Rusk County Sheriffs Office	311 Miner Ave E, Ladysmith, WI 54848	PH4
WI	Sawyer County Sheriff's Department	15880 E 5th St, Hayward, WI 54843	PH4
WI	St. Croix County Jail	1101 Carmichael Rd, Hudson, WI 54016	PH4
WI	Washburn County Jail	421 US-63, Shell Lake, WI 54871	PH4
WI	Waupaca County Jail	1402 Royalton St, Waupaca, WI 54981	PH4
WI	Winnebago County Sheriff's Department	4311 Jackson St, Oshkosh, WI 54901	PH4
WI	Wisconsin Department of Corrections	3099 E Washington Ave, Madison, WI 53704	PH4
WY	Wyoming Department of Corrections	1934 Wyott Dr # 100, Cheyenne, WY 82002	РН3

APPENDIX B

Grantee Timeline of Key Events for Pathway Home 6

Purpose: The purpose of this template is to help grantees prepare and plan for Pathway Home 6 Key Activities / Tasks, starting with planning activities and continuing all the way to follow-up

services.

Note: This template can be modified to appropriately capture your activities, partnerships, etc.

Timeframe: Planning Period 3 to 6 months, Period of Employment and Training Services 24 to 27 months, and Follow-Up Services 12 months (Total: 42 months grant performance period).

Category	Key Activity / Task	Description of Service(s) Provided		Agency/Person Responsible
TOTAL Planning Period	Directions: In this row, provide the start and end dates for the entire planning period (before participant enrollments begin). In the rows below, list key planning activities and the planned start and end dates.			
KEY Planning Activities	(e.g. meeting w/ partners, hire staff, purchase equipment)			
Planning Activities				
Planning Activities				
Planning Activities				
TOTAL Pre- Release Service Period	Directions: In this row, provide the start and end dates for the entire pre-release service delivery period. In the rows below, list key pre-release service activities and the planned start and end dates.			
KEY Pre- Release Activities	(e.g. recruitment, enrollment, job prepation)			
Pre-Release Services				
Pre-Release Services				
Pre-Release Services				

	T		1
Pre-Release Services			
TOTAL Post- Release Service Period	Directions: In this row, provide the start and end dates for the entire post-release service delivery period. In the rows below, list key post-release service activities and the planned start and end dates.		
KEY Post- Release Activities	(e.g. transition services, training)		
Post-Release Services	Transition services for participants (first 72 hours after release from custody)		
Post-Release Services	Caseworker (must be the same pre- and post-release)		
Post-Release Services	Skill-building (either registered apprenticeships or other occupational training as determined by local area need)		
Post-Release Services	Co-enrollment of participants in WIOA (if applicable)		
Post-Release Services	Linking IDP to post-release and follow-up services addressing barriers to reentry (i.e., housing, mental health and substance abuse treatments)		
Post-Release Services			
Post-Release Services			

TOTAL Partnership Agreement(s) Duration	Directions: In the rows below, list key partners and the start and end dates of each partner agreement/MOU. Also below partner agreements, list key partnership activities and the planned start and end dates.		
Partner #1			
Partner #2			
Partner #3			
KEY Partnership Activities	(e.g. background check for facility access, identify facility space for pre-release activities)		
Partnerships	Facility accessibility for applicant and partner staff		
Partnerships	Accommodations for services to be provided		
Partnerships	Internet accessibility or an alternative in the correctional facility or jail		
Partnerships	Resources and space supplied by the correctional facility for inmate participation and selection		
Partnerships	Security for applicant and partner staff		
Partnerships			
Partnerships			
TOTAL Follow-up Period	Directions: In this row, provide the start and end dates for the entire follow-up period. In the rows below, list key follow-up activities and the planned start and end dates.		
KEY Follow- up Activities	(e.g. transition services, support)		
Follow-up Services			
Follow-up Services			

Follow-up			
Services			